KTMPs

KILLEEN-TEMPLE
metropolitan planning organization

Transportation Planning
Policy Board

July 17, 2019
9:30 a.m.






KTMPs_

KILLEEN-TEMPLE

metropolitan planning organization

Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization
Transportation Planning Policy Board
Wednesday, July 17, 2019
Central Texas Council of Governments Building
2180 North Main Street, Belton, Texas 76513

Regular Meeting: 9:30 A.M.
AGENDA

Call to Order.

Opportunity for Public Comment.(1)

Staff Update: Advisory Committees; Air Quality; Administrative Amendments.

Action Item: Approve minutes from May 15, 2019 meeting.

Discussion and Action Item: Approve FY20-21 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).
Discussion Item: TxDOT Quarterly Review of Local Government Projects.

Discussion Item: Public input received through June 30, 2019.

Member comments.

000 b O O B R

Adjourn.

Workshop - To Follow Regular Scheduled Meeting if Needed
AGENDA

1. Call to order.

2. Discussion on any of the following topics (if needed):
a. Current or past KTMPO documents and plans to include Unified Planning Work Program,
Transportation Improvement Program, By-Laws, Public Participation Plan, Regional Thoroughfare/Bicycle
Pedestrian Plan, Metropolitan Transportation Plan, Congestion Management Process, Annual
Performance Expenditure Report, Annual Project Listing, Texas Urban Mobility Plan, Unified
Transportation Plan, Federal Certification Process; b. Past or Future KTMPO Meeting processes or
happenings; c. KTMPO Current, Past or Future MPO Boundary Studies; d. KTMPO Past or Future Annual
Meetings; e. Current, Past or Future KTMPO Budgets and funding conditions; f. Rural Planning
Organizations and/or Regional Mobility Authorities; g. Special Funding for Projects; h. Legislative
Changes; i. Status of MPO Projects; j. Staff, TxDOT, Consultant, Guest presentations relating to
transportation; k. Meetings pertaining to any transportation related items/topics.

3. Adjourn.

The Killeen-Temple Metropalitan Planning Organization is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabiliies Act (ADA). Reasonable accommodations and equal opportunity for effective communications
will be provided upon request. Please contact the KTMPO office at 254-770-2200 24 hours in advance if accommodation is needed. ( 1/Citizens who desire to address the Board on any matter may sign up to do so
prior to this meating. Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting. Comments are limited to 3 minutes maximum. No discussion or final action will be taken by the Board.

BOX 72! . BELTON, TX 76513 ‘ 254-770-2200 . FAX 254-770-236( . WWW KTMFO ORG
— wmm mmm e mmm mmm mme mm mmm e s Sm M Smm SEm SEm GEm M M M Emm M M Smm G Smm M MEm M M e e e






Transportation Planning Policy Board
»-; July 17, 2019

KILLEEN-TEMPLE

Agenda ltem #3

- S S WS S S SRS SR WS RS S S S SR S SR SRR S SR S G SR R G N S S e S S e e

Staff Update: FY19-22 TIP Administrative Amendments

Hill Country Transit District: The Federally and State Funded Highway Projects section of the
FY19-22 TIP (pgs. 13-31) lists all roadway, livability and bus replacement projects. Bus
replacement projects in this listing are those projects that received 10% of Category 7 KTMPO
dollars as approved by Policy Board. The Federally Funded Transit Projects section of the TIP
(pgs. 32-47) lists all federal funds (56307, 5310, 5339) expected to be received Hill Country Transit
District for planning and operations. The current TIP incorrectly lists a bus replacement project
under the Federally Funded Transit Projects section on page 44 that is already included in the
Federally and State Funded Highway Projects section on page 18. An administrative amendment
will be made to remove this project from page 44 of the FY19-22 TIP.

HCTD project Q40-46 will be administratively amended to separate ADA Operating Expense that
is allowable as a Capital Expense. As a separate project, it requires an 80/20 match instead of a
50/50 match.

An administrative amendment to the Capital Preventative Maintenance project will be made as
this project is part of the same Section 5307 funding as the above projects and the “amendment”
figures are more accurate than the “current” figures.

Performance Measures: Supplemental language regarding Pavement/Bridge Condition (PM2)
and System Performance (PM3) was added to the introductory chapter of the FY19-22 TIP. This
language provides specifics about the State’s targets adopted by KTMPO in 2018, as well as
KTMPO efforts to continuously meet the performance targets.

Action Needed: For discussion only.



uonIYy R 9ye(] AP UILIY

0% (Junowy ¢ s1eQq) N Joquiny
paplemy sPpal) "AS( “Sued] dl 60€5 085
0% ysenbay o1 syupa1n "A3(g “suel] - ‘u._.mﬁm_vmmw uondussaq
9ev'east 1s0000loid g0l Bupeiedovay  ooiddena
suoneiado aseld joslosd
851'5854 Js0) Jea) edsid 0202 Jes )
Juswuontoddy
880°LLL spungd Jay1o ELITETETEY))
0 -1 LOGXL woyy spung sjejs uoneunou|
05£°89%% B spund (y1d) [esapad 1aloid OdN
208G fioBajen Suipund [eiopay PusIg isuel ) Josuodg joalodd
Aunog (4
J0OA) uojeunoyu] Buijpung uoneWwIoju| 199f0ld [eiduany
uonIY 9 uonay g
ajeq Juswpuswy J1eq JUswWpuswy
% papiemy BWMHJM% Mﬂ..mn_._.y_. N sequny %8 ﬁ::oEaﬂw_M_aM M_W N Jaguiny
’ al 60£5 228 SIPoID *ASQ “SUEAL al 60gs 208
0t 3sanbay o} sypalg "Asq "suel (%3 ysenbay
HH/OOM ALOH uopduasag 0} supaug “aeq sueyy  HHOO ALOH uopduosag
10} sanAloe J0} sajanoe
199lo01d jJoug 193foud joug
G Buneradg . Bunesadp
790'L/£'28 1509 109l0ld 1ejo1 125 L0V'vS 1500 Josfoid |ejoL
suoneladp aseyd joafold suonelado aseld 3asfoig
290°L2228 1500 Jea), |eDsly 020e ieap  1Z5I9v'pS 1500 Je3 ) |easld 0z02 Jea)
Juawuoioddy Juawuontoddy
£20°'68. spung Jayo 9-0vD {99 yoquinu  §E0'69E'C spung.Jap 9r-0pD (10 Jaquinu
805'06¢ n EETERT-T) B ns 9oualajas)
10Qx1 wol) spung a)ejg uonewwosu| L0Q0x1 uroyy spung a)e)g uonewLIosu|
Leg'eal ig spuny (vL1d) |19pad 100loid O Z81'860'ZS spung (y14) jesapay 198[0id OdW
2088 fioBajen Butpung [eaepag  oulsIq Nsuel sosuodg yoalosg  LOES AioBajen  jous|q Isuel ] Josuodg josfoig
Ajunog |4 Bulpuny |esapay Ajunog [IiH

JOAJ UOHewIo U] buipung

[ FEE ST 2 EVED)

SOAJ] UOREULIOJU] BUIpUng

F O UERE DI EED)

ainjipuadxy hmﬂm\r =3J0A

PUISI] 008\ LOOXL

aunipuadx3 Jo JBaA = JOA

RUISI] 00BAA 1OOXL

0202 Ad

0202 Ad

WYHI0Ud LNIFWIACHdWI NOILYINOdSNYHL
NOILVZINYOHC ONINNY1d NVLITOdOM 1T ITdW3L-NIF TN

WYHOOHd INTFWIAOUJWI NOILVLHOdSNYH L
NOLLYZINVOHO ONINNYId NVLITOdOH.LIW TT1dWIL-NIITTIH

61/0 LNSWANIWY a3s0doud

dil 0ZAd-LLAd LNIHHND NI




0%

0%

009'686$
009'686%

0Z6'/61
0

089'164%

205

JOA}) uoljeulioju] burpund

{iunowry 3 sjeq)
pepiemy

SHpal) "Ad(] "SUBL]
1senbay o)

S)IpoJD "AB( "SUBd],

38509 Joeloid [ej0]
1500 Jeap [easiq

spuny 8o
10axL

wigy} spuny aeyg
spung

(v.1d) tetapaq
fioBajen
Buipun Jeiapag

HHOOM ALOH
10} asueumER
aAjuanald [ejden

ysuell Aunod M
uoneuLioju] 1o9loid jeiauagy

uogay
g 9)eQ JUBWpUALY

VN Jequnp gl 60€S 298

uonduaseag
joafoud Jang

aseyd Joaload

0Z02/6102 4ea) Juswuopioddy

{(n9

Jagunu aoualajad)
uojjewou]
josfoid OdW

Josuodg joalord

o$

0%

SZE0LL'LS
SCE0L1L'LS

590°7Ze
0

09z'8a8%

10g%

(unowy 3 ayeq)
papiemy

SHpPaln “Ad(] ‘sues]
Isenbay o)
SHpPaln “AsQ “suel]

3509 33afoid |ejo)
1505 Jea) [easld

spund 930
Loaxyp

wol spung ajeg
spuny

(vLd) jesapad
AoBajen
Buipung jesapay

[ZOA) uonewioju] Buipung

VN

Q190H 494
asueUBUIEW
aAljuaAalq
[endes
suonelado
0zogmieloz

JoMISIQ Ysuel]
Anunog iy

UCIEULIOU] }03[01d [Eiouds)

uopIY ¥ a1e( JUBLUPLILLY

1aquInN gl 605 99

uonduasaq yoalold Jaug

aseyd josloag
Jea ) Juawuoiuoddy

{012 “raquunu ajuaiayal)
uoijewopu] 3a3loid OdiN

Josuodg j99foag

020Z Ad

0202 Ad

WYHOOUd LNJWIAOEdINI NOILY LJOdSNYY L
NOLLVZINYOHO ONINNY1d NVLITOdOH L IW F1dWIL-NII 1A

WVHOOHd LINJWIACHINI NOILYLHOdSNYYL

NOLLYZINVOHO ONINNVId NVLITOdOH.IINW TTdWIL-NIITTIN

61/20 LNFWAN3IWY A3S0d0ud

dlL 0ZAS-LLAd LINIHHND NI







KTMP,J

KILLEEN-TEMPLE

KILLEEN-TEMPLE METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (KTMPO)

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING POLICY BOARD (TPPB)
Wednesday, May 15, 2019
9:30 AM

Central Texas Council of Governments (CTCOG)
2180 North Main Street
Belton, TX 76513

Policy Board Voting Members Present

Chair Tim Davis — City of Temple Ryan Haverlah for Dan Yancey—City of
Vice Chair Mayor Jose Segarra—City of Killeen Copperas Cove
Sam Listi for Marion Grayson—City of Belton Carole Warlick—Hill Country Transit District
Joseph Molis for Spencer Smith—City of Harker (HCTD)
Heights Butch Menking — City of Killeen

Councilmember Susan Long—City of Temple
David Blackburn — Bell County

Policy Board Non-Voting Members Present

Brian Dosa—Ft. Hood

Others Present

Caesar Arizpe—City of Killeen Darrell Burtner — HCTD
Solomon Thomas—TxDOT Bell County Area Terry Reeves — HCTD
Engineer Christi Bonham — TxDOT Waco District
Jason Deckman—City of Temple Uryan Nelson — KTMPO
Brynn Myers — City of Temple Kendra Coufal —KTMPO
Keith Sledd -- HOTDA James McGill - KTMPO

Meeting Minutes:
1. Call to Order: Tim Davis called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m.
2. Opportunity for Public Comment: No comments were made by the public.
3. Staff Update: Advisory Committees; Air Quality.

Kendra Coufal introduced James McGill, a new staff member with KTMPO, to the group. Mrs. Coufal also
told the group that there will be no June TAC or TPPB meetings. Meetings will resume in July, with TAC on
the 10t and TPPB on the 17t™". Mrs. Coufal also told the group that the next Planner’s Roundtable meeting



will be May 21, 2019. Air quality readings for the Month of April were 67 ppb at the Temple station and
60 ppb at the Killeen station.

4. Action Item: Approve minutes from April 17, 2019 meeting.

Butch Menking made a motion to approve April 17, 2019 meeting minutes, seconded by Jose Segarra;
the motion passed unanimously.

5. Discusston and Action Item: Approve amendments to the 2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan
(MTP) and FY19-22 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) regarding TxDOT's Advanced Traffic
Management System (ATMS) Project, W45-01.

Kendra Coufal informed the group that after the Policy Board approval, project W45-01 underwent a 15-
day public comment period with one public meeting during which no comments were received. The
amendment revises the original limits to the new limits from Coryell County line to FM 3423.

Carole Warlick made a motion to recommend the approval for MTP and TIP amendments for project
W45-01, seconded by David Blackburn; the motion passed unanimously.

6. Discussion and Action Item: Approve the 2045 MTP through Resolution 2015-04

Kendra Coufal informed the group that the draft 2045 MTP, which has been developed over the past year
with public workshops, a project call, and project scoring, and ranking has been compiled into a final copy.
The final copy of the 2045 MTP underwent a 30-day public comment period and public forum during which
no comments were received. Mrs. Coufal also stated that the final 2045 MTP has also been kept up to
date on the KTMPO website and is there for review and comment.

Susan Long made a motion to recommend approval of the 2045 MTP through Resolution 2019-04,
seconded by Jose Segarra; the motion passed unanimously.

7. Discussion Item: Review of draft FY20-21 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).

Kendra Coufal informed the board that the draft FY20-21 UPWP was brought before the TAC at their May
1% meeting for their review. Mrs. Coufal also informed the group that comments are being taken through
May 17" and that on June 1 the document will be submitted to TxDOT for their preliminary review. The
draft will be brought back one more time before the TAC and TPPB at their July meetings for final approval
before the official submission of the document to TxDOT on August 1* and then for FTA/FHWA approvali.

Mrs. Coufal referred the board to look at the screen for an overview of the draft task totals for planning
funds. The total budget summary for the two years combined is just over $2 million dollars with a
breakdown of that left in the meeting packet.

No comments were made.

8. Discussion ltem: Update on KTMPO 2018 Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) Federal Certification Review.

Kendra Coufal informed the group that the KTMPO received a letter from the FHWA/FTA submitting their
full summary report. According to the report there were no findings and no corrective actions, only a
couple of recommendations and plenty of commendations, Mrs. Coufal stated that it was overall a good
review and that KTMPO is certified to continue moving forward.

No comments were made.



9. Discussion item: Fort Worth — Laredo High Speed Transportation Study.

Uryan Nelson informed the group that KTMPO is working with 5 other MPOs in from the Fort Worth to
Laredo corridor on a High-Speed Transportation study. Mr. Nelson alsc informed the group that an
informational session on the study was being held following the meeting at 10.AM.

No comments \A.rere made.

10. Discussion Item: Public input received through April 30, 2019.

Public input received through April 30, 2019 were presented to the TPPB.
11. Member Comments:

Kendra Coufal reminded the group that May is National Bike Month and that the City of Belton passed a
resolution to recognize the month as National Bike Month. Mrs. Coufal also stated that this week is
National Bike to Work Week and Friday is National Bike to Work Day and KTMPO’s appreciation of cities
in the region recognizing the importance of alternative modes of transportation.

12. Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 9:43 a.m.

These meeting minutes were approved by the TPPB members at their meeting on

Mayor Tim Davis, Chair Jim Reed, KTMPO Director






Transportation Planning Policy Board
W J July 17, 2019

KILLEEN- TI:MI’LE

Agenda ltem #5

FY20-21 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) Approval

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) provides descriptive and scheduling details for the
Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) planning process for a two-year
period. The UPWP serves as a base document for carrying on the continuing, cooperative and
comprehensive transportation planning process in the Killeen-Temple urbanized area. It serves
as our work plan and identifies tasks and subtasks that we plan to undertake during the plan
period and the associated budget for these tasks.

Staff has updated the UPWP for FY20-21 and included in meeting packet. All feedback received
from TAC, Policy Board and TxDOT has been included in the plan.

Tentative Schedule:

May 1, 2019—TAC review of Draft FY20-21 UPWP.

May 15, 2019—TPPB review of Draft FY20-21 UPWP.

May 17, 2019- Submission of questions and comments to KTMPO staff.
June 1, 2019- KTMPO submits UPWP to TxDOT for review.

July 10, 2019- TAC recommends approval of final FY20-21 UPWP.
July 17, 2019- TPPB approves of final FY20-21 UPWP

August 1, 2019-KTMPO submits final UPWP to TxDOT.

Action Needed: Approve FY20-21 Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP).




KTMPs

KILLEEN-TEMPLE
metropolitan planning organization

FISCAL YEARS (FYs) 2020-2021
UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM

KILLEEN - TEMPLE METROPOLITAN PLANNING
ORGANIZATION

Approved by Transportation Planning
Policy Board:

Amended by the Transportation
Planning Policy Board:

This document was prepared in cooperation with the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), the
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the Federal Transit Administration (FTA). All contents of
this report reflect the views of the authors who are responsible for the opinions, findings and conclusions
presented herein. The contents do not necessarily reflect the views or policies of FHWA, FTA or TxDOT.

Plan Approved on XXXX
Administrative Changes on XXXX
Plan Amended by TPPB on XXXX



CONTENT

Introduction

Work
Elements

Appendices

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Purpose of the Unified Planning Work
Program

Definition of the KTMPO Planning Area
Organization

Private Sector Involvement

Planning Issues and Emphasis

1.0 Administration/Management

2.0 Data Development and Maintenance
3.0 Short Range Planning

4.0 Metropolitan Transportation Plan

5.0 Special Studies

Budget Summary

A: Transportation Planning Policy Board
and Technical Advisory Committee
Membership

B: Metropolitan Area Boundary Map

C: Debarment Certification

D: Lobbying Certification

E: Certification of Compliance

F: Certification of Internal Ethics &
Compliance Program

PAGE

[ e RNd e ]

11

17
20
23

24

27
28
29
30
31



INTRODUCTION

PURPOSE OF THE UNIFIED PLANNING WORK PROGRAM:

The Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) provides descriptive and scheduling details for the Killeen-
Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) planning process for FYs 2020-2021. The activities
are required to implement the provisions of 23 USC 134 and 49 USC 5303 and are conducted in
accordance with 23 CFR 420, 23 CFR 450, and FTA Circular C8100. The UPWP serves as a base
document for carrying on the continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive (3 C's) transportation planning
process in the Killeen-Temple urbanized area.

The MPO’s Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP) will comply with all applicable federal and state
regulations. Several transportation bills have been implemented in the past. These include the following:

» ISTEA—The Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991, which emphasized
the efficiency of the intermodal transportation system.

» TEA-21—The Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century, signed by the President in
1998, builds on the initiatives established in ISTEA with a particular focus on equity through
access, opportunity, and fairness.

» SAFETEA-LU—The Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A
Legacy for Users, was enacted in 2005 authorizing the Federal suiface transportation
programs for highways, highway safety, and transit for the 5-year period 2005-2009.

¢  MAP-21—The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act, was enacted in 2012 and
created a streamlined and performance-hased surface transportation program and builds on
many of the highway, transit, bike, and pedestrian programs and pclicies established in 1991.

« FAST Aci—The Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act, was passed in 2015 covering a
5-year period and was the first Federal law in over ten years to provide long-term funding
certainty for surface transportation (for fiscal years 2016 through 2020). The FAST Act
continues the Metropolitan Planning Program and authorizes $305 billion for the
Department's highway, highway and motor vehicle safety, public transportation, motor carrier
safety, hazardous materials safety, rail, and research, technology and statistics programs.

The FAST Act (23 CFR 450.308) requires MPOs to develop long-range transportation plans and
Transportation Improvement Programs (TIPs) through a performance-driven, outcome-based approach to
planning for metropolitan areas of the State. The metropolitan transportation planning process shall be
continuous, cooperative, and comprehensive, and provide for consideration and implementation of
projects, strategies, and services that will address the following factors:

(1) Support the economic vitality of the metropolitan area, especially by enabling global
competitiveness, productivity, and efficiency;

(2) Increase the safety of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users;
(3) Increase the security of the transportation system for motorized and non-motorized users;
{4) Increase accessibility and mobility of people and freight;

{5) Protect and enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, improve the guality of
life, and promote consistency between transportation improvements and State and local planned
growth and economic development patterns;

(6) Enhance the integration and connectivity of the transportation system, across and between
modes, for people and freight;

(7) Promote efficient system management and operation;



(8) Emphasize the preservation of the existing transportation system;

(9) Improve the resiliency and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate storm
water impacts of surface transportation; and

{10} Enhance travel and tourism.

In addition, the MPQO supports national transportation goals, increasing the accountability and
transparency of the Federal-aid highway program, and improving project decision-making through
performance-based planning and programming. Our focus sustains the national goals listed in 23 USC
150:

+ Safety: achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public

roads.

s Infrastructure condition: maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a state of
good repair. '

» Congestion reduction: achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the National
Highway System.

» System reliability: improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system.

s Freight movement and economic vitality: improve the national freight network, strengthen
the ability of rural communities to access national and international trade markets, and
support regional economic development.

» Environmental sustainability: enhance the performance of the transportation system while
protecting and enhancing the natural environment.

» Reduced project delivery delays: reduce project costs, promote jobs and the sconomy, and
expedite the movement of people and goods by accelerating project completion through
eliminating delays in the project development and delivery process, including reducing
regulatory burdens and improving agencies’ work practices.

The MPO continues to engage interested parties during the development of the Public Participation Plan
(PPP), and the short-term and long-term transportation plans. Per 23 CFR 450.316, interested paries
such as those listed below, shall have reasonable opportunities to comment on projects of the short-term
and long-term transportation plans:

o Affected public agencies

o Freight shippers

s Private providers of transportation services

* Representatives of public transportation employees

¢ Representatives of the disabled

+ Representatives of users of public transportation

» Representatives of users of pedestrian walkways and bicycle transportation facilities
s Other interested parties

The MPQO continues to consult and cooperate with federal, state, and local agencies and tribal nations
responsible for land use, natural resources, and other environmental issues during the adoption of long
and short-term plans. The MPO consults with agencies responsible for historic preservation, natural
resource conservation, environmental protection, and land use management, as appropriate, in the
development of the short and long-term transportation plans. The KTMPO network of agencies are listed
below:



...Local Economic

...Airports/Railroads
...Bureau of Land Management Forest
Service (US Department of Agriculture)

...General Land Office

....Bell County

. ....Coryell County

...Congressional Representatives

... Department of Aging & Regional Services
....Department of Section 8 housing

...FFort Hood

...Homeland Security

... Historical Commission

...Lampasas County

...Local Churches

....Local Historical Agencies

...Local Land Use Plans (City and County)
...Local Parks and Recreation Departments
Development
Corporations

... Local Chamber of Commerce

... Local City Government

... Local Educational Institutions

... Local Planning & Zoning Commissions

... Local Transportation agencies

... National Marine Fisheries

... Public Libraries

... State Representatives

... Tribal Nations

.. Texas Commission on Envircnmental

Quality (TCEQ)

.... Texas Historical Commission

.... Texas Parks and Wildlife

... U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

... U.S. Border Patrol

... U.5. Department of Transportation

.... U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
... U.S. Fish and Wildlife Services

... U.5. Geological Survey

In conjunction with the development of the Mobility 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP),
environmental issues were considered. A general discussion of potential environmental issues has
occurred in consultation with federal, state, tribal nations, environmental, and other regulatory agencies.
This discussion is included in the MTP.

Transporiation plans will include the use of visualization technology/techniques. The MPO will continue
to investigate technology solutions as funding is available. Examples of visualization technigues may
include charts and graphs, tables, Geocgraphic Information System (GiS) maps overlaid with data,
computer simulation, photo manipulation and static maps. The intent for this technique is to better depict
the programs and their impact on the public. The KTMPO will utilize visualization technigues during the
development of the short-term and long-term transportation plans.

DEFINITION OF THE KTMPO PLANNING AREA:

The Metropolitan Planning Area {(MPA) includes the cities of Bartlett, Belton, Copperas Cove, Harker Heights,
Holland, Kempner, Killeen, Little River/Academy, Morgan’s Point Resort, Nolanville, Rogers, Temple, Troy,
and Village of Salado. The planning area includes areas that may be reasonably expected to become
urbanized in the next 25 years in between those cities and within the counties of Bell, Coryell, and Lampasas.
(See Appendix B.)

ORGANIZATION:

KTMPQ policy is guided by the Transportation Planning Policy Board (TPPB). TPPB Membership is defined
in an officially adopted set of bylaws. A list of the TPPB Membership is provided in Appendix A. The TPPB
provides policy guidance for the organization and is responsible for reviewing and approving the MPO's MTP,
the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), and UPWP. The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC),
appointed by local jurisdictions, assists the TPPB in reviewing projects from the technical point of view and
advising the TPPB on technical issues. MPO staff is comprised of planning and technical professionals
responsible for the administration of this organization.



The Central Texas Council of Governments is under contract with TxDOT to provide professicnal technical
support, staff, and administrative support for the MPO per federal funding agency guidelines. Currently, the
staff consists of a Director, Manager, Planners, GIS technicians, and support personnel.

PRIVATE SECTOR INVOLVEMENT:

Private consultants may be used, but not limited, to conduct special studies within the region including
thoroughfare plans and traffic counts; may be used to conduct demographic and traffic studies for planning
public transit system routes and setvices; and may be used to collect additional necessary transportation
data.

PLANNING ISSUES AND EMPHASIS:
Continued KTMPO efforts in the implementation of the transportation bills will identify planning issues and
emphasis areas which include:

» Coordinate with local, regional, state, and federal agencies in the development of a
comprehensive, accessible, and seamless transportation system for all citizens;

» Provide transportation planning assistance to the Killeen and Temple Urban Transit Districts in
fulfilling their role as the provider of urban transit service;

» Evaluate transportation alternatives scaled to fit the region, its transportation issues, and the
realistically available resources from a context sensitive approach to develop a sustainable
transportation system that improves the livability of our region;

* Continue data development and implementation of the Congestion Management Process
{CMP);

+ Monitor the implementation of the 2045 MTP;
¢ Manage the TIP to ensure that it serves the region’s goals;

¢ Involve the general public in the transportation planning process through the implementation of
the PPP;

« Continue to transition to Performance-based Planning and Programming (PBPP) by working with
our federal, state and local partners (expectations of performance targets will to continue to be
identified by state partners during this UPWP cycle and efforts with local partners to collect
performance data will occur during this cycle as well);

* Continue “Regional Models of Cooperation” efforts and “Ladders of Opportunity” through
meetings with Transit and area/regional MPQs on air quality, roadways, freight, transit, and other
transportation planning issues. KTMPO staff will continue hosting quarterly Central Texas
Regional Transportation Advisory Group meetings and bi-monthly Planner Roundtable sessions
to discuss common gaps, successes, and challenges. These meetings allow the KTMPO region
to address transportation efforts and needs on a “real time” basis;

» Continue to facilitate a Freight Advisory Committee to identify KTMPO Freight needs and issues;
and

» Continue to facilitate regular meetings of the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Group to identify non-
motorized transportation needs within the region.



TASK 1.0 ADMINISTRATION / MANAGEMENT

A.

OBJECTIVE:

To ensure that the metropolitan area transportation planning process is a fully cooperative,
comprehensive and continuing activity. This is characterized by a pro-active public involverment
process, constant monitoring of on-going planning activities, and assurance that all modes of
transportation are given consideration as elements of a multi-modal urban transportation system
in the overall planning process. This task also ensures the incorporation of previous federal
legislation and FAST Act requirements.

EXPECTED PRODUCTS: :

The expected product is a management structure that accomplishes established planning
objectives in conformance with state and federal requirements. All UPWP tasks will be budgeted
and scheduled in advance as best as possible to assure that the majority of efforts are properly
sequenced and resourced. Planning documents produced may include the Annual Performance
and Expenditure Report, the Annual Project Listing, Annual Title VI Report, and modifications to
the Bylaws (as needed). Consultant procurement activities will be conducted by MPO as needed.

PREVIOUS WORK:

1. Prepared the FY2018 Annual Performance and Expenditure Report, FY2018 Annual Project
Listing, and the FYs 2018-2019 UPWP and administrative amendments.

2. Conducted TPPB and TAC meetings; facilitated Bike/Pedestrian Advisory and Freight
Advisory Committee meetings; hosted bi-monthly Planner Roundtable meetings to provide a
forum for regional coordination and information exchange among the various entities within
the MPO boundary. These regularly scheduled meetings are ongoing.

3. Attended various community evenis such as Ft. Hood Earth Day, Gatesville ISD Earth Day, and
Leadership Central Texas and served as representative on Central Texas Regional
Transportation Advisory Group to promote awareness of transpariation-related topics (i.e. air
quality, transportation options, etc.). Attending events, promotional efforts and serving as
committee representative when possible is ongoing.

4. Maintained a management structure that accomplishes the planning objectives set forth.
Maintenance of structure is ongoing.

5. Staff members attended various workshops and conferences sponsored by TxDOT, FHWA,
FTA, National Highway Institute, Topics included f{reight movement, planning and
environmental linkages, local government planning, project evaluation irainings, public
involvement, resiliency, performance measure compliance and others. Conferences included
the American Planning Association annual mesting, Association of Metropolitan Planning
Organizations, TxDOT Transpertation Forum, TxDOT Transporiation Planning Conference,
and others.

6. Staff also participated in free FHWA/TxDOT sponsored webinars as available on a wide
range of planning topics to include Census Data, Environmental Justice, and Title VI,
performance measures, public engagement, freight and mobility planning. Attending
meetings, trainings, and conferences is ongoing.

7. Maintained demographic data and used in evaluating and selecting projecis with regard to
Environmental Justice (EJ) areas; location and impact of a project with regard to EJ areas
was considered. Data collection for EJ areas is ongoing.

8. Provided administrative support to all MPO entities and members as requested to include data,
maps, information, and presentations. Efforts of administrative support are ongoing.

9. Provided the public with up—to-date transportation related information via email and KTMPO
website updates to include: social media, presentations, KTMPO meeting materials,



10.

1.

12.

transportation related news from all partners, current KTMPO transportation planning
documents, transportation planning information handouts and quarterly newsletters. Public
awareness of transportation related information is ongoing.

Continued maintenance agreements regarding GIS software and additional costs for shared
equipment in the CTCOG facility including maintenance on copy machines, plotters and
computer equipment. '

KTMPO staff prepared for and underwent a Federal Certification Review with no findings.
FHWA and FTA jointly determined that the metropolitan transportation planning process was
substantially consistent with federal requirements in 23 CFR 450(highway) and 49 CFR Part
613 (transit) metropolitan planning regulations.

Worked with the TPPB/TAC on revised project scoring criteria, issued project call for MTP
resulting in the competitive selection of projects and repriotitized project listing.

SUBTASKS:
1.1. General Administration

Work items under this subtask include reports, correspondence and documentation of actions
for the record, inventory, accounting and financial management; staff supervision and personnel
administration; meetings; consultant contract procurement, management and oversight; staying
abreast of rules and regulations from FWHA, FTA, and TxDOT; and other administrative duties
and correspondences, to include the following:

Committee and Board Support: MPO staff will provide administrative support for the TAC,
TPPB, Bike and Pedestrian Adviscry Committee, Freight Advisory Committee, and Planner
Roundtable.

Title VI Civil Rights Evaluation/Environmental Justice: The MPO will continue to follow
guidance on Title V] and EJ compliance for all projects and procedures and will update the PPP
accordingly. The MPO will continue to utilize demographic data related to Title VI/EJ and
integrate these tools into project selection for development of the MTP and the TIP. Public
hearings will be held in EJ areas at ADA accessible common facilities, during mid-day or early
evening hours and will avoid being scheduled near or on significant holidays. The public is
encouraged to contact KTMPO for special needs accommodation.

Public Participation Plan: KTMPO will update and monitor the Public Participation Plan as
needed to ensure it conforms to federal legislation, along with state and local requirements to
include Title VI and Environmental Justice. Revisions will be implemented as needed to
improve the effectiveness of the public input process and KTMPO will consider appropriate best
practices from other MPOs and public agencies.

Public Involvement and Qutreach: Staff will offer presentations and materials as requested to
the public. Staff will continue to explore public outreach efforis such as surveys and internet-
based outreach mechanisms. KTMPO staff will develop and participate in community outreach
programs. These community outreach opportunities will keep citizens informed about the
transportation planning process and provide additional opportunity for public input. Staff will
provide “livestreaming” of the policy board meetings. Staff will provide the public with up-to-date
transportation related information via email, social media, the KTMPO website, and quarterly
newsletters. KTMPO will maintain all functional website information/design through staff and
contracted services.

UPWP: MPO staif will coordinate with the TPPB to assess the status of the MPO and the
needs of members and plan a budget for the next two-year scope of work. MPO staff will

8



1.2.

1.3.

1.4,

1.5.

review and amend the UPWP in FYs 20 & 21 as needed and will develop the next two-year
UPWP in 2021.

Training

Staff will attend workshops or meetings - conducted by FHWA/FTA/TXDOT, the State
Transportation Pianning Conference, regional KTMPO business, Waco/Brownwood Districts,
TxDOT meetings and briefings, local MPO efforts, Texas Technical Working Group, meetings of
the Texas Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations (TEMPQO), and courses
appropriate for increasing staff familiarity and expertise with transportation planning, which
includes all modes of transportation.

Travel

Staff travel will primarily be utilized for the following tasks: workshops or meetings conducted by
FHWA/FTA/TXDOT, the State Transportation Planning Conference, regional KTMPO business,
Waco/Brownwood Districts, TXDOT meetings and briefings, local MPO efforts, Texas Technical
Working Group and meetings of the Texas Association of Metropolitan Planning Organizations
(TEMPO}. The MPO may send representative(s) to the Association of MPOs' national meeting
and to other national/stateflocal meetings where firansportation issues and/or
workshops/trainings are presented. The KTMPO staff will seek prior approval for “out of state”
travel.

Equipment
Equipment needs for the KTMPO may include software and automation maintenance services in

order to meet the local transportation planning needs. The automation needs for the KTMPO
may include, but are not limited 1o the following: IT infrastructure, GPS units, congestion
monitoring data and equipment, data collection devices, servers, computers, peripherals,
furniture, and general office equipment. KTMPO staff will obtain all necessary approvals prior to
all purchases over $5,000. KTMPO understands acquisition costs do not only apply to a single
iterm.

Cperating Costs
The MPO will incur costs associated with rental and operation costs. These costs include but

are not limited to building expenses, office supplies, copying, printing, equipment rentals, utilities,
repairs, and maintenance cost.



FUNDING SUMMARY

Task 1.0 - FY20/21

Transportation

. FTA Sect.
Responsible Planning Funds Local
SUBTASK Agency (TPF)) 9307 Total
FY20 Fy21 FY20 | FY21 | FY20 | FY21

1.1 ADMINISTRATICN KTMPO $381,731 | $381,731 $0 $0 $0 $0 | $763,462
1.2 TRAINING KTMPO $3,500 $3,500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $7,000
1.3 TRAVEL KTMPO $7,000 $7,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,000
1.4 EQUIPMENT KTMPO $8,000 $8,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $16,000
1.5 OPERATING KTMPO $85,117 | $85,117 $0 $0 $0 $0 | $170,233
COST
Total $485,348 | $485,348 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $970,695

(1) TPF — This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 funds.

Estimate based on prior years' authorizations. Approvals are made contingent upon
legislation for continued funding.

TxDOT will apply transporiation development credits sufficient to provide the match for
As the credits reflect neither cash nor
person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.

FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.

10




TASK 2.0 DATA DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE

A.

OBJECTIVE:

Developing and maintaining a good database is essential o determine existing as well as future
transportation demand. The purpose of this element is to continue to improve that database,
including population, income and housing, crash records, traffic counts, land use and
development data, information on special generators, all based upon traffic analysis zones (TAZ),
and census block group areas. All data regarding minority and low income socio-economic
groups will be developed and maintained with respect to Title VI requirements.

EXPECTED PRODUCTS:

The expected products include maintaining a computer-oriented transportation planning capability
with current databases and any needed updates to those databases. MPO staff will continue to
create and maintain a system of collecting and reporting local data in support of the regional
database. Data sets will be maintained for crashes, GIS development, traffic counts, special
generators, and demographic forecasts. All existing equipment will be maintained appropriately.

PREVIOUS WORK:

The subtasks associated with this task are performed on a continual basis from year to year.

Highlights of work completed include:

1. KTMPO technical staff continued to maintain a transportation database with all data
associated with itransportation planning analysis, including, but not limited to: roadway
network, bicycle and pedestrian network, Congestion Management Network, transit routes
and stops, traffic counts, traffic accidents, employment data, housing data, and environmental
justice areas.

2. KTMPO technical staif continued to gather, verify, and update all spatial data as required for
transportation. Updated the bicycle and pedestrian facilities layer as information became
available. Reevaluated the environmental justice areas to maintain a consistent Census
geagraphy in analysis. Published web-based mapping tocls on ArcGIS Online to provide
visibility on planned projects as well as to allow public input to highlight gaps in the GIS data
or to propose new hicycle or pedestrian facilities.

3. Continued to provide mapping and data support to planning partners.

SUBTASKS:

2.1. Database Maintenance
Continue to update the roadway network, land use, and socioeconomic data within the MPO
MPA. Maintain databases that include: traffic crash locations, traffic counts, roadway network,
employment data, housing data, and Title VI / EJ information. In addition, staff will collect and
maintain trip data from various resources as needed on strategic locations such as: Ft. Hood,
local hospitals, airports, schools, and colleges. KTMPO staff will coordinate planning and data
collection efforts with TxDOT and possibly other local entities.

2.2. GIS Development
Maintain GIS as required for planning functions. Assist member governments in GIS training as
available. Cantinue to develop and maintain a comprehensive GIS management program to
manage GIS layers more efficiently. MPO staff will continue to gather, enter, verify, and/or
update data in GIS coverages as described below.

1. Traffic counts, capacity, speeds, length, and crash data.
2. Fort Hood network.

11



Noe o

© w

Land Use at TAZ level: population, employment by category, income, developed vs.
undeveloped.

Maintain digitized maps of TxDOT/county files and KTMPQO TransCAD network.

Continued supply of base data for madeling in coordination with TxDOT.

Functional classification.

MTP multi-modal elements relative to routing, mapping, and planning to include and may not
be limited to: Hike/bicycle trails, aviation, rail, freight, and transit.

Census Transpottation Planning Package trends and UZA and MPA boundaries.
Environmental Justice / Title VI data.

12



FUNDING SUMMARY

Task 2.0 - FY20/21

. Trans_portation FTA Sect.
SUBTASK ] Re:g:gz;ble Pian?_llgg)i;l)mds 5307 Local Total
FY20 FY21 FY20 | FY21 | FY20 | FY21

2.1 DATABASE KTMPO $20,074 | $20,074 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $40,148
MAINTENANCE
2.2 GIS KTMPO $20,074 | $20,074 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $40,148
DEVELOPMENT
Total $40,148 | $40,148 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $80,296

{1) TPF - This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 funds.

Estimate based on prior years' authorizations. Approvals are made contingent upon
legislation for continued funding.

TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to provide the match for

FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.
person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.

As the credits reflect neither cash nor

13




TASK 3.0 SHORT RANGE PLANNING

A.

OBJECTIVE:

Conduct short-term planning and potential project implementation within the next four-year
period. Staff will continue cocrdinating short-term planning endeavors throughout the region and
encourage more public participation in the planning process. Provision of a safe, clean, reliable
public transportation system within the planning region.

EXPECTED PRODUCTS:

1. Revised TIP to program highway, transit, bicycle, and pedestrian projects that are ready to be
implemented or constructed.

2. Public awareness of the transportaiion planning process.

3. MPO support system of the multi-county regional public transportation service plan through the
attending of meetings and providing technical assistance support within the MPA.

4. Compliance with federal and state requirements for short range planning including any needed
changes to the next TIP iteration. '

5. Coordination with TPPB/TAC on selection of projects and allocation of funding as funding
becomes available.

6. Monitored review of 2019-2022 TIP.

7. Development of the Draft FY 2021-2024 TIP.

PREVIOUS WORK:

1. Development of the FYs 2019-2022 TIP.

2. Revisions to the FYs 2017-2020 TIP

3. Coordination and hosting of the Central Texas Regional Transportation Advisory Group
{CTRTAG) responsible for updating the Regionally Coordinated Transportation Plan (RCTP).

4. Coordination and hosting of the “Planners Roundtable” for partner planners.

5. Coordination and hosting of the Development District of Central Texas (DDCT) quarterly
meetings to discuss economic development issues/needs in the area.

6. Conducted TPPB and TAC meetings; facilitated Bike/Pedestrian Advisory and Freight
Advisory Committee meetings; hosted bi-monthly Planner Roundtable meetings to provide a
forum for regional coordination and information exchange among the various entities within
the MPQO boundary. These regularly scheduled meetings are ongoing.

SUBTASKS:

3.1. Committee and Board Support
MPO staff will continue to conduct Bike and Pedestrian Advisory Committee, Freight Advisory
Committee, and Planner Roundtable.

3.2. Transportation Improvement Program
MPO Staff will monitor and revise the FYs 2019-2022 TIP and develop FYs 2021-2024 TIP. Staff

will coordinate this effort by meeting with local and TxDOT officials, organizing meetings,
adhering to the KTMPQO PPP, and publishing any TIP amendments. MPC staff will ensure that
each agency reviews the information within the TIP to maintain the most accurate document
possible. MPOQ staff will evaluate the TIP on the condition and performance of the
transportation system in achieving performance targets to address the anticipated effect of
the TIP and investment priorities for achieving the performance targets as identified in the
MTP.

3.2 Regional Planning Project

14



KTMPO will participate in regionally coordinated transpertation planning to support the public
transportation/human services plan required by HB 3588, enacted by the 78" Legislature in
2003, amending Chapter 461, Subtitle K, Title 6 of the Texas Transportation Code entitled
“Statewide Coordination of Public Transportation”; Executive Order 13330 (Human Setvice
Transportation Coordination) signed on Fehruary 26, 2004, and SAFETEA-LU signed on August
10, 2005, both by former President George W. Bush; and adopt any subsequent changes as the
legislature deems appropriate.

This may include sharing data, preparing maps, attending or sponsoring workshops,
conferences, training sessions, meetings, and providing general transportation planning
expertise to the effort. The MPO will also consult with agencies and officials responsible for
other planning activities within the metropolitan planning area that are affected by
transportation including: a) tourism; and b) natural disaster risk reduction.

3.3 Hill Country Transit District — Temple UZA - Planning
KTMPO will provide planning services as requested to Hill Country Transit District in support of
the HCTD planning efforis.
HCTD will use FTA Section 5307 funds to administer the grant in accordance with FTA
guidelines to perform the following duties:

» Comprehensive planning activities relating to the continued provision of fixed route and
complementary para-transit service;

s Review of routes, bus stops, shelter locations, and major transfer points;

s  Review of marketingfadvertising program;

s Coordination of transportation services;

+ Safety and security planning;

e Participation in regional planning efforts;

e Review of air quality issues and use of alternate fueled vehicles;

e Application of software programs for planning and scheduling routes and trips for Fixed
Route Service and American's with Disabilities Act (ADA) Complementary Para-transit
Service;

e  On-going financial planning and analysis; and,

e Other allowable activities directly related to implementation of fixed route and
complementary ADA para-transit services.

3.4 Hill Country Transit District — Killeen UZA — Planning
KTMPO wilt provide planning services as requested to Hill Country Transit District in support of
the HCTD planning efforts.
HCTD will use FTA Section 5307 funds to administer the grant in accordance with FTA
guidelines to perform the following duties:

« Comprehensive planning activities relating to the continued provision of fixed route and
complementary ADA para-transit service for the cities of Copperas Cove, Killeen, and
Harker Heights;

+ Review of routes, bus stops, shelter focations, and major transfer points;

+ Review of marketing/advertising program;

» Coordination of transportation services;

» Safety and security planning;

+ Patrticipation in regional planning efforts;

» Congestion management planning, which affects traffic patterns on US 190;

15



Review of air quality issues and use of alternative fueled vehicles;
On-going financial planning and analysis; and,
Other allowable activities directly related to refining and expanding current fixed route and
complementary ADA paratransit services.

FUNDING SUMMARY

Task 3.0 - FY20/21

Transportation
Responsible | Pianning Funds FTA Sect. 5307 Local
SUBTASK Aooney TPRO Total
FY20 FY21 FY20 Fy21 FY20 | Fyzl
31 TIP KTMPO $48,259 | $48,259 $0 $0 $0 $0 $96,518
3.2 REGIONAL KTMPO $9,652 | $9,652 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,304
PLANNING
3.3 HCTD HCTD $0 $0 $6,499 | $6,499 | $12,070 | $12,070 | $37,138
TEMPLE UZA -
PLANNING
34 HCTD HCTD $0 $0 $15,407 | $15,407 | $17,374 | $17,374 | $65,562
KILLEEN UZA
PLANNING
Total $57,911 | $57,911 | $21,906 | $21,906 | $29,444 | $29,444 | $218,522

(1) TPF - This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 funds.

Estimate based on prior years' authorizations. Approvals are made contingent upon
legislation for continued funding.

TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to provide the match for

FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.

person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.

As the credits reflect neither cash nor

16




TASK 4.0 METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATICN PLAN

A.

OBJECTIVE:

The current MTP was approved by the TPPB in May 2019. A MTP must address at least a 20-year
planning period to include both long and short-range strategies that will lead to the development of
an integrated intermodal metropolitan transportation system (23 CFR 450-322). The 2045 MTP will
be continually reviewed and revised as needed. The 2050 MTP must be adopted by the TPPB by
May 2024 unless designated as non-attainment. Non-attainment MTP planning requires a 4-year
update.

EXPECTED PRODUCTS:

1. KTMPO will monitor and implement the MTF designed to meet the objectives and needs of its
members. Continued implementation of key planning elements of the MTP may include and are
not limited to: local Advisory Groups, updated prioritization of projects utilizing an updated TDM,
updated planning and environmental linkages elements in each project, and updates as needed
to the CMP. ‘

2. KTMPO will comply with House Bill (HB) 20, passed by the Texas Legislature in 2015, and
coordinate with TxDOT district representatives to develop a 10-Year Plan utilizing the current
TIP and the next 6 years of projects based upon project prioritization, readiness and funding
availability.

3. KTMPO will track and report performance on the CMP network and assess progress macde
towards congestion reduction. The CMP will be updated as needed

PREVIOUS WORK:

1. Staff continued to implement the 2040 MTP.

2. Staff updated the Regional Thoroughfare Plan into the Regional Multimodal Plan.

3. KTMPO staff prepared for and underwent a Federal Certification Review with no findings.
FHWA and FTA jointly determined that the metropolitan transportation planning process was
substantially consistent with federal requirements in 23 CFR 450{(highway) and 49 CFR Part
613 (transit) metropolitan planning regulations.

4, Staff adhered io federally required performance measure implementation timeline with
adoption of performance measure targets for the region and inclusion into planning
documents.

5. Staff conducted an update of the 2045 MTP to include revised scoring criteria, call for
projects, scoring process and reprioritization of project listing.

6. Staff utilized a consultant to use the 2015 Travel Demand Model to determine level of service
for each of the MTP roadway projects submitted during the call for projects.

Staff utilized a consultant to assist in further development and implementation of the CMP, to '
include the identify and use data sources to update the CMP and monitor system
performance, calculate congestion performance, and re-prioritize CMP Segments.

7. During FY18-19, staff regulariy reviewed information for the ozone monitors in Killeen and
Temple and posted air quality information on the KTMPO website and newsletters, and
presented updated ozone readings at various MPO meetings.

SUBTASKS:

4.1 Mobility 2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan Implementation
The MPO staff, with the assistance of consultants as needed, will monitor the implementation of
the MTP 1o evaluate the impact of changes that may occur in planning policy, project priority,
available funding, and federal legislation. MPO staff will submit to the TAC and the TPPB any
changes that impact projects or available funding. This subtask includes the following:

17



Planning and Environmental Linkages: KTMPO will promcte planning and environmental
linkages by attending relevant workshops and providing information to the TAG/TPPB
membership. MPQ staff will coordinate with appropriate TxDOT staff to implement and support
measures including development of purpose and need statements when projects are submitted
and coordination with other agencies to identify environmental issues. The MPO will consult
with agencies and officials responsible for other planning activities within the metropolitan
planning area that are affected by transportation including: a) tourism; and b) natural disaster
risk reduction. The MPO will incorporate two new planning factors: a) improve the resiliency
and reliability of the transportation system and reduce or mitigate storm water impacts of
surface transportation; b} enhance travel and tourism. The MPO will include consideration of
intercity busses.

KTMPQ will continue to comply with House Bill (HB) 20 and coordinate with TxDOT district
representatives to develop a 10-Year Plan utilizing the current TIP and the next 6 years of
projects based upon project priotitization, readiness and funding availability.

Air Quality: KTMPO will continue to review data from the ozone monitor at Skylark Field in
Killeen and West Temple Park in Temple; support proactive programs, such as Ozone Advance;
and educate the public in reducing ozone levels. Updated information will be provided to the
TAC and TPPB as needed to determine appropriate policies and actions for our region.

TDM/Project Selection: KTMPO will use the travel demand model to evaluate transportation
projects. Consultants may be utilized to further develop and enhance the modsl as described in
Subtask 5.1.

Performance Measures/Targets: KTMPO will continue development of and will include
description of performance measuresftargets in accordance with federal and state
requirements. The MPO will be involved in discussions with FHWA, FTA, and TxDOT in the
development of performance measuresftargets. The MPO will initiate review of specific data
needs that are applicable to the established performance measuresftargets. MPO staff will
evaluate the MTP on the condition and performance of the transportation system in
achieving performance targets and progress toward achieving performance targets and
prepare a system evaluation report. The MPO will develop a MOU/MOA (or similar
document) to address written provision for cooperatively developing and sharing information
related to transportation performance data; selection of performance targets; reporting of
performance targets; reporting and tracking progress. The MPO staff will assess the capital
investment and other strategies to preserve the existing and future transportation system
and reduce the vulnerability of the existing transportation infrastructure to natural disasters.
Consultants may be utilized as described in Subtask 5.3.

4,2 Congestion Management Process (Internal)
CMP: KTMPO will track and report performance on the CMP network and assess progress
made towards congestion reduction. The CMP will be updated as needed. Cansultants may be
utilized as described in Subtask 5.2.

18



FUNDING SUMMARY

Task 4.0 - FY20/21

Transportation

. FTA Sect.
Responsible Planning Funds Local
SUBTASK Agenc v (TPE)" . 5307 Total
FY20 FY21 FY20 | FY21 | FY20 | FY21
4.1 MTP 2045 KTMPO $157,400 | $157,400 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $314,800
IMPLEMENTATION
4.2 CONGESTION KTMPO $9,652 $9,652 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,304
MANAGEMENT
PROCESS
(INTERNAL)
Total $167,052 | $167,052 $0 $0 $0 $0 $334,104

(1) TPF - This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 funds.

Estimate based on prior years’ authorizations. Approvals are made contingent upon
legislation for continued funding.

TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to provide the match for
As the credits reflect neither cash nor

person-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.

FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs.

19




TASK 5.0 SPECIAL STUDIES

A,

OBJECTIVE:

To provide a format for the inclusion of a variety of topics necessary to complete the goals and
objectives set forth in the MTP and other unique transporation topics which demand spescial
attention and are beyond the scope of the other regularly-programmed activities and tasks. This task
includes subtasks that may not be worked on continuously or that may not be completed in two
years. Several study needs that could have an impact on regional planning have been discussed
with the KTMPQ partners. Funds have been reserved for miscellanecus studies. The TAC and
TPPB will determine which studies to fund during FY20 and 21.

EXPECTED PRODUCTS:
Special studies are designed to provide information that has a direct impact to the regional
transportation plan.

PREVIOUS WORK:

1. KTMPO staff utilized a consultant to assist in tracking and reporting performance on the CMP
network, assessing progress made towards congestion reduction, and updating the CMP as
needed.

2. Staff utilized a consultant to update the CMP and run the TDM to evaluate and prioritize
projects for inclusion in the MTP project listing and assign objective scores.

3. During FY18, MPO staff continued researching requirements for performance-based planning
and programming and participated in FHWA webinars. Scoring criteria was evaluated for the
inclusion of elements of HB20 and proposed rules/guidelines provided by FHWA.

4. KTMPO reviewed and updated the Regional Thoroughfare and Pedestrian/Bicycle Plan into
the new Regional Multi-Modal Plan to reflect updated information, changing development
trends, shifts in travel patterns, and other relevant factors that may impact future multi-modal
planning in our region.

SUBTASKS:

5.1 Travel Demand Model
KTMPQO may use consultants as needed to further enhance and develop the model and assist
in running the TDM to evaluate projects.

5.2 Congestion Management Process
KTMPO may use consultants as needed to assist in tracking and reporting performance on the

CMP network, assessing progress made towards congestion reduction, and updating the CMP
as needed.

5.3 Performance Measures/Targets
KTMPO may use consultants as needed to assist in developing performance
measuresftargets in accordance with federal and state requirements.

5.4 FAST Act Performance Measures Study
KTMPO will be conducting a performance measures study in response io the Fixing

America’s Surface Transportation (FAST) Act requirements. This study plans to identify
performance measures and metrics, evaluation of related performance criteria and weighting
in project prioritization process, and scenario testing to optimize project prioritization
outcomes using existing data sources.

20



55

5.6

5.7

Vulnerability & Resiliency Study

KTMPO will be conducting a Vulnerability & Resiliency Study to outline vulnerable roadways
and to highlight improvements to the system. This task may include an assessment of
current transportation systems vulnerability to major transportation incidents or weather
related hazards, the existence of alternative routes, ability to recover, and the operaticnal
capacity for emergency response and incident management/clearance.

Evaluation of 2045 MTP Projects

KTMPO will be conducting an evaluation of 2045 MTP Projects. This process will include
whether current transportation projects address the needs of the region and to determine if
improvements to current projects are needed before a future project call.

Future Growth Scenario Plan

KTMPO will be developing a Future Growth Scenario Plan. This plan will develop different
growth scenarios based and will highlight alternative transportation networks based on the
various growth scenarios. '

5.8-5.11 Special Studies

KTMPO may use consultants as needed to assist in conducting planning studies. Funds
have been reserved for these studies. Studies presented to TAC in February 2018 for future
consideration include Regional Freight Transportation/Parking Study, Transit Demand Study,
Corrider Study, Environmental Justice Analysis of Transporiation Projects Study, Bike Share
Feasibility Study and others. Other studies may include traffic count studies, bike/ped regional
connections studies, rails to trails feasibility studies, transit funding options, etc. The TAC
and TPPB will be consulted in determining which studies to fund and approve the funding of
these studies.

21



FUNDING SUMMARY

Task 5.0 - FY20/21

Transportation

. FTA Sect.
Responsible Planning Funds Local
SUBTASK Agency (TPE)® 5307 Total
FY20 Fy2i FY20 | FY21 | FY20 | FY21
5.1 TRAVEL KTMPO $50,000 | $50,000 $0 30 $0 $0 | $100,000
DEMAND MODEL
5.2 CONGESTION KTMPO $100,000 | $100,000 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $200,000
MANAGEMENT
PROCESS
5.3 PERFORMANCE KTMPO $12,500 | $12,500 $0 %0 $0 $0 $25,000
MEASURES AND
TARGETS
5.4 FAST ACT KTMPO $19,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $19,000
PERFORMANCE
MEASURE STUDY
5.5 VULNERABILITY KTMPO $30,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $30,000
& RESILIENCY
STUDY
5.6 EVALUATION OF KTMPO $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,000
2045 MTP PROJECTS
5.7 FUTURE KTMPO $27,500 $0 $0 30 $0 $0 $27,500
GROWTH SCENARIO
PLAN
5.8 SPECIAL STUDY KTMPO $35,000 | $35,000 80 $0 30 $0 $70,000
(see previous page)
5.9 SPECIAL STUDY KTMPOQ $35,000 | $35,000 S0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000
{see previous page)
5.10 SPECIAL STUDY KTMPO $35,000 | $35,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,000
{see previous page)
5.11 SPECIAL STUDY KTMPO $35,000 | $35,000 80 $0 80 $0 $70,000
(see previous page)
Total $399,000 | $302,500 | $0 $0 $0 $0 | $701,500

(1) TPF — This inciudes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 funds.

Estimate based on prior years' authorizations. Approvals are made contingent upon
legisiation for continued funding.

TxDOT will apply transportation development credits sufficient to provide the match for
FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs. As the credits reflect neither cash nor man-
hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.

22




UPWP BUDGET SUMMARY FY20/21

Transportation
Responsible Planning Funds FTA Sect. 5307 Local
SUBTASK Agency (TPF)(‘I) Total
' FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21 FY20 FY21
1. Administration- | KTMPO $485,348 | $485,348 $0 $0 $0 $0 $970,695
Management
2. Data KTMPO $40,148 $40,148 %0 $0 $0 $0 $80,296
Development and
Maintenance
3. Short Range KTMPO & $57,911 857,911 $21,206 | $21,906 | $29,444 | $29,444 | $218,522
Planning HCTD
4. Metropolitan KTMPO $167,052 $167,052 $0 $0 $0 $0 $334,104
Transportation
Plan '
5. Special Studies | KTMPO $399,000 $302,500 80 %0 $0 $0 $701,500
Total $1,149,459 | $1,052,959 | $21,906 | $21,906 | $29,444 | $29,444 | $2,305,117
1TPF - This includes both FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 Funds. TxDOT will apply transportation
development credits sufficient to provide for FHWA PL-112 and FTA Section 5303 programs. As the
credits reflect neither cash nor man-hours, they are not reflected in the funding tables.
Combined Transportation Planning Funds $1,257,188
(FHWA PL-112: $1,109,325; FTA 5303:
5147,863) based on FY17 & FY18 allocations.
Estimated Unexpended Carryover S 831,226
FY19 Carryover
TOTAL TPF $2,088,414

23




APPENDIX A

Chairman:

Mayor Tim Davis

City of Temple

2 North Mam #103, Temple TX 76501

Phone: [254) 283-5301

Fax: (254) 288-5837

tdavis i@item pletx gow

Alternate: Brynn Myers, Lynn Barrett, Brian Chandber, Jason
Deckman, Erin Smith

Vice Chairman:

Mayor Jose Segama

City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Kileen, Texas 76541

mavyorikfeentexas.gov

Phone: (254} 200-0548

Alternate: Ron Clson, Councilmember Jim Kilpatrick,

Councilmember Butch Menking
City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Kileen, TX 78541

Phone: (254) 501-7600

Alternate:

Councilmember Gregory Johnson

City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Kileen, TX 78541

Phone: {254} T02-5162

adiohnsondkileentexgs gov

Altemnate: Ron Olson, Councilmember Shirley Fleming,

Councilmember Susan Long
City of Temple

2 North Main 5t, STE 103
Temple, TX 78501

Phone: {254} 774-5700

susan longi@temolets gow
Altenate: Erin Smith, Brynn Myers, Jason Deckman

POLICY BOARD

Mayor Marion Grayson

City of Belton

333 Water Street, Belton, TX 78513
Phone: (254) 718-T878

Fax: (254) 332-04a83
mariongrayson{@gmai.com
Alternate: Sam Listi, Cheryl Maxwell

Councilmember Dan Yancey

City of Copperas Cove

PO Drawer 1448; 814 5 Man 51, Ste. C
Copperas Cove, TX 76522

Phone: (254) 547-4221

dyancey(@c T3SCOVETL.QOV

Alternate: Ryan Hawerlah

Mayor Spencer Smith

City of Harker Haights

305 Miller's Crossing, Harker Heights, TX 76548
Phone: (254) B53-5500

Fax: (254) 853-5605

shsmithi@ci harker-heights tx.us

Alternate: David Mitchell, Joseph Molis

Mayor Tammy Cockrum
Bell County

2 W. Mesquite Ave
Rogers, TX 76552
Phone:{254) 842-3312
Fax: (254) 842-3102
Mayor@cityofrogers.us
Altemate:

Commissioner Mark Rainwater
Lampasas County

P.O.Box 231

Lampasas, TX 76550

FPhone: (512)7234-0742

Fax: (512)556-3270
rainwater 1 S0 ifigmail.com
Alternate:

24



Judge Roger Miller

Coryell County Main Strest Annex
300 E. Main Street, Sute &
Gateswille, TX 76528

Phone: (254} B33-5011, ext. 2222
Fax: (254) 865-2040
countyjudge@eorvellcounty.ong

AMernate:

Judge David Blackburn

Bell County Historic Courthouse

101 E. Central Avenue

Belton, Texas 76513

Phone: {254 B33-5105

Fax: (254) 833-5172

David blackbumi@bellcounty.texas. gov
Altemmate: Bobby Whitson

Carole Warlick

General Manager, Hill Country Transit District
P.O. Box 217, San Saba. TX 76877

Phone: {325} 3724677

Fax: (325) 372-6110
cwarlick@takethehop com

Alemate: Darrell Burtner

Stan Swiatek, P.E.

District Engineer, TxDOT Waco
100 5. Loop Drive

Waco, TX 76704

Phone: {254} BB7-2700

Fax: (254) 367-2320

Stan. swiatek@txdot.goy
Aternate: Victor Goebel

Elias Rmeili, P.E.

TxDOT Brownwoaod District Engineer
2485 Hwy 153 North

Brownwood, TX 76802

Phone: {325} 643-0411

Fax: (325) 643-0364

ehas meili@txdot gov

Alternate: Jason Scantling

APPENDIX A

POLICY BOARD

HOMN VOTING MEMBERS
Brian Dosa

Ft. Hood Public Weorks Director
Buiding 4812

Fort Hood, TX 7E544

Phone: (254 287-2113
brian.!l.dosa cw@mail.mil

Altermnate: Kristina Manning

Justin P. Morgan

Federal Highway Administration, Texas Division
300 East 8" Sireet. Rm 826

Austin, Texas 78701

(312) 536-5943

Justin.morganfdot gov

25



Ron Olson

Kileen City Manager

101 N. College St.. Kileen, TX, T6541
Phone: (254) 501-7700
rotsoni@killeentexas gov

AHemate: Caesar Arizpe, Danelle
Smgh

Robert Lewis

Copperas Cove Planning Drector
P.Q. Drawer 1442

Copperas Cove, TX 78522
Phone: (254) 547-4221

dewis rascovet gov
Alternate: Ryan Haverlah

Joseph Molis

Harker Heights Planning Director
City of Harker Heights

305 Miller's Crossing

Harker Heights, TX 70548
Phone: (254) 853-5600

jmolis@ci harker-heights.tx.us
Alternate: Dawid Mitchell

Cheryl Maxwell

Belton Pianning Director

333 Water 5t., Belton, TX 76513
Phone: (254) 833-5812

Fax: (254) 833-5822

cmaxwelfbeltontexas.gov
Alternate: Sam Listi

Brian Chandler

Temple Planning Director

2 North Mam, Temple, TX 76501
Phone: (254) 298-5272
behandler@templety.gov
Altemnate: Don Bond, Lynn Barrett,
Brynn Myers, Jason Deckman, Erin
Smih

APPENDIX A

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Victor Goebel, P.E.

Director, Transportation Planning &
Development. TxDOT Waco

100 South Loop Drive, Waco TX
78704-2358

Phone: 254-867-2885

Fax: 254-887-2723

xictor gosbel@ixdot.gov

Alternate: Liz Bullock, Christi Bonham

Jason Scantling, P.E.

Director, Transportation Planning &
Development. TxDOT Brownwood
2425 Hwy 183 North, Brownwood, TX
76802

[3son scantin dot.gov

Alternate:

Bryan Neaves, P.E.

Bell County Engineer

P. 0. Box 264, Belton, TX 76513
Phone: (254) 833-8275

Fax: (254) 933-5278

bryan neaves@bellcounty.texas. gov

Alternate:

Carole Warlick

General Manager, Hill Country Transit
District

P.0. Box 217, San Saba, TX 76877
Phone: (325) 3724677

Fax: (325) 372-6110
cwarlick@takethehop.com

ARlernate: Darrell Burtner

Judge Roger Miller

Coryell County Main Street Annex
200 E. Main Street, Suite A
Gatesville, TX 76523

Phone: (254) B65-5211, ext. 2221
Fax: (254) 865-2040
countyiudge@coryellcounty.org

Alternate:

Commissioner Mark Rainwater
Lampasas County

P.O. Box 231

Lampasas, TX 76530

Phome: (512)734-0742

Fax: {512}556-8270
rRinwater1 30 @gmai.com
Altenate:

HNON VOTING MEMBERS
Brian Dosa

Ft. Hooo Public Works Director
Buiding 4812

Fort Hood, TX 78544

Phone: (254) 287-2113
brian.|.dosa cvi@mail.mil

Justin P. Morgan

Federa! Highway Administration,
Texas Dwision

300 East 8 Street, Rm 826
Austin, TX 75083

'|u5tsn.mo_fgan@got.gow

Brigida Gonzalez

T=DOT TPP

MFO Coordinator

118 E. Riverside Dr.

Austin, TX 78704

Phone: (512) 4B8-5048
Brigida ponzale: dot.gov

Solomon A Thomas

TxDOT Waco District/Bell County
Area Enginesr

410 West Loop 121

Befton, TX 76513

Phone: (254) 238-3778

solomon thomas@txdot goy

Kara Escajeda

Nolanville City Manager

101 North 5% Street

Nolanville. TX 78550

Phone: (254) 608-8335

kara escajeda@ci nolanvile.tx.us

26



APPENDIX B

O

*sasodund Supasudua Jo ‘Suranins ¢ 140§ IQERNE 3q J0U Arw dew Sl JUSWAUYAI IO/

sajepdn o} palgns aq Lew pue ‘5 se,, papuoid 5j ejep

.aﬂﬁ“ﬁ:ﬂ&:iﬁ—vusﬁh Azeinooe jo anuesend ou Ajuo sasodand Ii:.!&.i;owo«:pzé dew sy

sajl
K = ¢ g peoy Aluno)
Ajunoj W4 ® SN ssauishg
uoswel]]lm shemybiy a181S
/i shemybig sN —
S6 ) AemybiH s1e1518)U| =—x=
Ajunon 1 sapy M
i G61 ,
7|a ealy Buluue|q On_s_.rxu
= 3 (0 ALFNNOD
J 11349 )
i g
/1 AOHAT .
06 » . ‘ . f Ajuno)
| 3 { 2
: 06
e e 102
a_x e S5 ) (] /: k!
(k) e
S ; 2
€0t ;
Y ¢
6 N\
i >m_..az noj
{ ~ SV S\V.d W Vil
s
I
Aiuno) e
sjjed £ ALNNOD
113 AH0D
Ajuno)

PUUDTOW

Eo.l RMUue

ejijodonlsiN OdIN LM

27



M

()

APPENDIX C

DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION
(Negotiated Contracts)

The Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization (KTMPO) as CONTRACTOR certifies

to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

(a)  Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency;

(b}  Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil
judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public* transaction or contract under a
public transaction; violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false
statements, or receiving stolen property;

(¢}  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmentail
entity* with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this
certification; and

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more
public transactions* terminated for cause or default.

Where the CONTRACTOR is unable to certify to any of the statements in this ceriification, such
CONTRACTOR shall attach an explanation to this certification.

*federal, state or local

Signature — Mayor Tim Davis, Chairman
KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board

Date



APPENDIX D
LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS,
LOANS AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS

The undersigned certifies to the best of his or her knewledge and belief, that:

(M

(@)

(3)

No federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any federal contract,
the making of any federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

i any funds other than federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report
Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including sub-contracts, sub-grants, and contracts
under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and
disclosure accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into
this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

Signature —

Mayor Tim Davis, Chairman

KTMPO Transponation Planning Policy Board

Date



APPENDIX E

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE

1, Mavor Tim Davis, KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board Chairman
{Name and Position, Typed or Printed)

a duly authorized officer/representative of Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization ,
{(MPO)

do hereby cettify that the contract and procurement procedures that are in effect and used by the
forenamed MPO are in compliance with 2 CFR 200, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

Principles, and Audit Reguirements for Federal Awards,” as it may be revised or superseded.

Attest:

Signature - Mayor Tim Davis, Chairman Name
KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board

Date Title



APPENDIX F

CERTIFICATION OF INTERNAL ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE PROGRAM

Mavor Tim Davis, KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board Chairman
(Name and Position, Typed or Printed)

a duly authorized officer/representative of Killeen-Temple Metropolitan Planning Organization
(MPQ)

do hereby certify that the forenamed MPO has adopted and does enforce an internal ethics and
compliance program that is designed to detect and prevent violations of law, including regulations and
ethical standards applicable to this entity or its officers or employees and that the internal ethics- and
compliance program satisfies the requirements of by 43 TAC § 31.39 “Required Internal Ethics and
Compliance Program” and 43 TAC § 10.51 “Internal Ethics and Compliance Program” as may be revised

or superseded.

Attest:

Signature - Mayor Tim Davis, Chairman
KTMPO Transportation Planning Policy Board

Name

Date

Title






Transportation Planning Policy Board
|
KTMPs

KILLEEN-TEMPLE

Agenda ltem #6

TxDOT Quarterly Review of Local Government Projects
Each quarter, TXDOT staff will provide a quarterly update of local government projects to keep
KTMPO Technical Advisory Committee abreast of project readiness and potential delays
throughout the region.

Action Needed: No Action. For Discussion Only.




61/9/¢ uo pajuasasd uonewsoju|

10adxl1 1e }jeis 0D |e207 }ejuo) sAejap Joujw 3ujdey si 1a3loud 3ume| Joj >jdeay uo si yaloud

| 9seyd TSYE N4 E vz/T SIySI9H JeH | £00-TO-60VE

sseduapun ¥y 91T N4 14 e €e/t aAn0) sesaddo) SS0-T0-¥2L0

ssedAg an0) sesaddo) E 12/1 9A0) sesaddo) €00-6T-TEZ0

0Tt N4 ©
S1USIoH Jd)Ie -€0-
punoseuin] 06T SN H 0¢/L 1YsioH 19)4eH LVT-€E0-TECO

06T SN SNg 0T B INZ 1eD 0z/€ an0) sesaddo) 290-20-T€20
$)|emMapIS TvLT IN4 H 61/8 E 850-20-SEST

SuIuapIM 06T SN E 6T/9 10axL 190-10-TEZ0
sdwes punoue uinj H 61/S 10axL €/0-20-9€80

s123oud 197 are1s

Alewwing snjels 133foad OdINL




10dx1 ie jjeis JN0D |ed07 }oejuo)

1| @seyd |eseddey)

61/9/€ uo pajuasasd uonewaoju|

L1€)

sAejap Joujw Suidey si 13loud

8¢/1

ua3)|1)

3umaj 404 >joeay uo si 3afoad

¢LT-9€-6060

jled] ¥y umolasioan

6 1)

Le/t

9|dwa|

€LT-9€-6060

|| 9seyd dooq 133nQ

L 1€)

Lz/1

9|dway

vL1-9€-6060

yied sioLiepn

L 1e)

qz/T

S}Y3I19H J}4eH

TLT-9€-6060

| 9seyd |eieddey)d

L1e)

€¢/T

VEETT

SLT-9€-6060

Ainndauuo) daed A

L)

12/T

3||iAuejON

L9T-9€-6060

dNS SNU3AY €T

6 1ed

12/T

uol|ag

69T-9€-6060

| @seyd dooq 121nQ

L 1e)

T2/T

9|dwayl

89T-9€-6060

S€ HI

VSV1 -6 1€)

0z/8

uoiljag

€91-9€-6060

SMOJieN 3yl

67 L13ie)

0z/s

9A0) sesaddo)

TET-6€-6060

S)|emapls 9TT N4

L1e)

6T/t

3n0) sesdddo)

€T0-T0-8C1¢

uondiinsag

Suipun4

21eQ 197

Josuods

rSJ2

s129(o.d 191 |e201

Alewwing sniels 33loid OdINL







Transportation Planning Policy Board
July 17, 2019

KILLEEN-TEMPL
metropolitan planning organization Agenda Iltem #7

W S A W SR SR W S S G G G G S S SR S e e e e m e W e e s e S S S S

Public Input Received through June 30, 2019

KTMPO has been collecting public comments received online, via emails, public hearings,
meetings, social media accounts, web maps and other forms of communication. Staff bring these
to the TAC and TPPB on a regular basis to ensure the MPO boards are aware of public concerns
and have the opportunity to respond accordingly. Public input received through June 30, 2019 is
included in meeting packet.

Action Needed: No action at this time; for discussion only.




sluapIe ueLysapad/aiysa
uaaa.d djoy 0) passaappe 3 1SNW Pue AN INO 10} BNss) AJ24es e A[S1aULDp $i SiyL
*131uad AULnwiwod i pue yied AYD ‘sa1c)s ‘[ooyas o} yjem o3 2gnd ayl Aq pasn 19auls

pad/ong 8T0T/LfTT 101902 Asnq B 511§ 35NEIG H 9AY U0 SH[EMBPIS JO PAaU U) 5] I[IAUBION JO A1 3yl |lewy MBYSUIH ueor|  8T0Z/9/TT
"PEOI SIYY UMOD Jj|eMm OYm B)doad 1o} 35 Ajees e sasodoud | snuay|

pad/axig 810Z/4/eT jrews vosdwes Judy|  6102/S/1T
‘padojaaspun si 1ey] s2ed B ul 5q PINOYs Ing
PSpPIBU S| ABMPROI YINOS 01 YUOU 13y10uy "23JE SJY) U} DA} OYM SpooyloqyBiau sy pue
‘ajip|im ‘adedspue| syl 1dnnsip {[im Aempeod YL 'papaau 1ou si 193(oad py ayeq 0} axeq

Aempeoy 8TOZ/E/TT fIeD suoy4 PleyAey adluer| RTOZ/TT/0T

21do] | DVL 03 paluasald

TUBWILLIOY) J]Grid

SEA TUSWIWCT) 318

UBWWOED RGN

6TAd
JusaIwIo) 3ljgnd OdINLLY

WBWWO) al|gng 10 suesy

awen

aleq







Chairman:

Mayor Tim Davis

City of Temple

2 North Main #103, Temple TX 76501

Phone: (254) 298-5301

Fax: (254) 298-5637

tdavis @templetx.qov

Alternate: Brynn Myers, Lynn Barrett, Brian Chandler, Jason

Deckman, Erin Smith

Vice Chairman:

Mayor Jose Segarra

City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Killeen, Texas 76541

mayor @killeentexas.qov
Phone: (254) 290-0548
Alternate: Ron Olson,
Councilmember Jim Kilpatrick,

Councilmember Butch Menking
City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Killeen, TX 76541

Phone: (254) 501-7600

bmenking @killeentexas.gov
Alternate: David Olson

Councilmember Gregory Johnson
City of Killeen

101 N. College Street

Killeen, TX 76541

Phone: (254) 702-5162
adiohnson @killeentexas.gov

Alternate: Ron Olson, Dennis Baldwin, Councilmember
Shirley Fleming,

Councilmember Susan Long
City of Temple

2 North Main St., STE 103
Temple, TX 76501

Phone: (254) 774-5700

susan.long @templetx.gov
Alternate: Erin Smith, Brynn Myers, Jason Deckman

July 11, 2019

POLICY BOARD

Mayor Marion Grayson

City of Belton

333 Water Street, Belton, TX 76513
Phone: (254) 718-7878

Fax: (254) 939-0468
mariongrayson @ gmail.com

Alternate: Sam Listi, Cheryl Maxwell

Councilmember Dan Yancey

City of Copperas Cove

PO Drawer 1449; 914 S. Main St., Ste. C
Copperas Cove, TX 76522

Phone: (254) 547-4221
dyancey @ copperascovetx.gov

Alternate: Ryan Haverlah

Mayor Spencer Smith

City of Harker Heights

305 Miller's Crossing, Harker Heights, TX 76548
Phone: (254) 953-5600

Fax: (254) 953-5605
shsmith@ci.harker-heights.tx.us

Alternate: David Mitchell, Joseph Molis

Mayor Tammy Cockrum
Bell County

2 W. Mesquite Ave
Rogers, TX 76569
Phone:(254) 642-3312
Fax: (254) 642-3102
Mayor @ cityofrogers.us
Alternate:

Commissioner Mark Rainwater
Lampasas County

P.O. Box 231

Lampasas, TX 76550

Phone: (512)734-0742

Fax: (512)556-8270

rainwater150@gmail.com
Alternate:



KILLEEN-TEMPLE

Judge Roger Miller

Coryell County Main Street Annex
800 E. Main Street, Suite A
Gatesville, TX 76528

Phone: (254) 865-5911, ext. 2222
Fax: (254) 865-2040

countyjudge @ coryellcounty.org
Alternate:

Judge David Blackburn

Bell County Historic Courthouse

101 E. Central Avenue

Belton, Texas 76513

Phone: (254) 933-5105

Fax: (254) 933-5179

David.blackburn @ bellcounty.texas.gov
Alternate: Bobby Whitson

Carole Warlick

General Manager, Hill Country Transit District
P.0. Box 217, San Saba, TX 76877

Phone: (325) 372-4677

Fax: (325) 372-6110

cwarlick @takethehop.com

Alternate: Darrell Burtner

Stan Swiatek, P.E.

District Engineer, TxDOT Waco
100 S. Loop Drive

Waco, TX 76704

Phone: (254) 867-2700

Fax: (254) 867-2890
Stan.swiatek @txdot.gov

Alternate: Victor Goebel, Courtney Jones

Elias Rmeili, P.E.

TxDOT Brownwood District Engineer
2495 Hwy 183 North

Brownwood, TX 76802

Phone: (325) 643-0411

Fax: (325) 643-0364

elias.rmeili @ txdot.gov
Alternate: Jason Scantling

July 11, 2019

POLICY BOARD

NON VOTING MEMBERS
Brian Dosa

Ft. Hood Public Works Director
Building 4612

Fort Hood, TX 76544

Phone: (254) 287-2113

brian.l.dosa.civ@ mail.mil

Alternate: Kristina Manning

Justin P. Morgan

Federal Highway Administration, Texas Division
300 East 8" Street, Rm 826

Austin, Texas 78701

(512) 536-5943

Justin.morgan @dot.gov



KT MPs

KILLEEN-TEMPLE
Ron Olson

Killeen City Manager
101 M. College St , Kilean, T, 78541
Phone: (254) 501-7700

rol killeentexas.

Altemate: Caesar Arizps, Danielle
Singh

Robert Lewis

Copperas Cove Planning Director
P.0. Drawer 1442

Copperas Cove, TX 76522
Phone: (2564) 3474221
devisifpeopperascovats gov
Altemate: Ryan Haverlah

Joseph Molis

Harker Hesghts Planning Director
Caty of Harker Hagnts

305 Miller's Crossing

Harker Heights, TX 76548
Phone: [254) 953-3600
jmeols@c.harker-heights.te us
Altemate: Dava Machsl

Cheryl Maxwell

Belton Planning Director

333 Water 5t, Belton, TX TE513
Phone: [254) 833-5812

Fax: (254) 933-5622
cmaxwel @ beltontexas.gov
Alternate: Sam List:

Brian Chandier

Temple Planning Director

2 North Main, Temple, TX 7650t
Phone: (254) 298-5272
behandler@empletx gov
Alternate: Don Bond, Lynn Barrett.
Brynn Myers. Jason Deckman, Ern
Smith

APPENDIX A

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Victor Goebel, P.E.

Curector, Transportation Planning &
Development, TxDOT Waco

100 South Loop Drive, Waco TX
TaT04-2858

Phone: 254-387-2885

Fax: 254-287-2738

wictor. goebel@ituoot pow

Altemate: Liz Bullock, Christi Boniham

Jason Scantling, P.E.

Director, Transportation Planning &
Development, TxDOT Brownwood
2405 Hwy 183 North, Brownwood, TX
78802

) -

Altemate:

Bryan Neaves, P_E.

Bell County Engineer

F. 0. Box 264, Befton, TX 76513
Phone: (254) 833-5275

Fax: (254) 833-5276

bryan neaves@bellcounty texas.gow
Altz=mate:

Carole Warlick

General Manager, Hill Country Transit
District

P.O. Box 217, San Saba, TX 76377
Phone: (325) 3724877

Fax: (325) 372-811D
cwarickftakethehop com

Altemate: Darrell Buriner

Judge Roger Miller

Coryell County Man Street Annex
300 E. Main Strest, Suite A
Gateswile, TX 76528

Phone: (254) 833-5811, ext. 2221
Fau: (254) 233-2040
counthyiudgeiicoryellcounty.om
Altemate:

Commissioner Mark Rainwater
Lampasas County

P.O. Box 231

Lampasas, TX 78550

Phone: (512)734-0742

Fax: (512)5656-8270

rainwster1 50 omail com
Altemate:

NON VOTING MEMBERS
Brian Dosa
Ft. Hood Public Works Director
Building 4312
Fort Hood, TX 76544
Phone: (254) 287-2113

. i

Justin P_ Morgan

Federal Highway Administration,
Texas Dwision

300 East 8" Strest, Rm 528
Austin, TA 75083

justin morgan@dot.gov

Brigida Gonzalez

TxDOT TPP

MPO Coordinator

118 E. Riverside Dr.

Austin, TX TET04

Phone: (512) 488-5048
brigida. I edot.gow

Liz Bullock

T=DOT Waco District
Transportation Planner

100 South Loop Drive, Waco TX
T@704-2858

Phone: (254 887-2751

Faoi: (254) 867-2734

liz bullockdot gov

26



KT MPs

KILLEEN-TEMPLE

Solomen A Thomas

TxDOT Waco District/Befl County
Area Engineer

410 West Loop 121

Belton, TX 78513

Phone: (254) 838-3778

Kara Escajeda

Nolanville City Manager

101 North 5 Streat

Nolanville. TX 76552

Phone: (254) 698-8335

kara escajeda@eci notanwille.te us

APPENDIX A

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE

27



Chair Kara Escajeda

Nolanville City Manager

101 North 5th Street

Nolanville, TX 76559

Email: kara.escajeda @ci.nolanville.tx.us

Vice Chair Brian Chandler
Temple Planning Director

2 North Main Street

Temple, TX 76501
Email:_bchandler @templetx.gov

Matt Bates

Belton Park and Recreation Director
P.O. Box 120

401 N. Alexander

Belton, TX 76513

Email:_ mbates @beltontexas.gov

Joe Brown

Copperas Cove Park and Recreation Director
1408 Golf Course Road

Copperas Cove, TX 76522

Email:_jbrown @ copperascovetx.gov

Katelyn Kasberg

TxDOT Waco District

100 S. Loop Drive, Waco, TX 76704
Email: Katelyn.Kasberg @txdot.gov

Courtney Peres

City of Harker Heights

305 Millers Crossing

Harker Heights, TX 76548

Email: cperes @ci.harker-heights.tx.us

Pamela Terry
Citizen Representative
Email: TERRYP8 @nationwide.com

Keller Matthews

BS&W Cycling Club/Citizen Representative
600 S 25th St

Temple, TX

Email: KMATTHEWS @sw.org

BICYCLE/PEDESTRIAN ADVISORY COMMITTEE

Chad Welch

Tri-City Bicycles/Citizen Representative
1010 Arbor Park

Belton, TX 76513

Email: welchc01 @live.com

Alternate: Mike Anderson

Mike Anderson
Tri-City Bicycles/Citizen Alternate
Email: mikeande @ att.net

Doug Edwards

Central Texas College/Citizen Representative
6200 W. Central Texas Expy

Killeen, TX 76549

Email: doug.edwards @ctcd.edu

Marlene Maciborski
Women on Wheels/Citizen Representative
Email: mdv8ed @ hotmail.com

John Wiist

King of the Mountain Cyclery
100 A North Main St.
Nolanville, TX 76559

Email: 1komjohn @ gmail.com

Kristina Manning

Ft. Hood

Email: Kristina.l.manning.civ@ mail.mil
Alternate: Mario Perez




KTMP

>/
KILLEEN-TEMPLE N

metropofitan planning organization STAFF

Jim Reed, AICP
Interim Director SO
Phone: (254) 770-2200 R T
Fax: (254) 770-2360 !
jim.reed@ctcog.ora

Uryan Nelson

PRS Division Director
Phone: (254) 770-2373
Fax: (254) 770-2360

uryan.nelson@ectcog.org

Kendra Coufal

Planning Services Manager
Phane: (254) 770-2363
Fax: (254) 770-2360
kendra.coufal@ctcoag.org

Sydnee Steelman
Regional Planner
Phone: (254) 770-2379
Fax: (254} 770-2360

sydnee.steelman@ctcog.org

James McGill
Regicnal Planner
Phone (254) 770-2366
Fax: (254) 770-2360

james.mcgill@cteog.org

July 10, 2018



KTMPs

RMLLELN TIMPLE
metrepolitan planning organizalion

Commonly Used Transportation Related Acronyms and Terms

Qrganizations
KTMPO
Killeen = Tample Metropolitan Planning Organization
TPPB (KTMPO}
Transportation Planning Policy Board

TAC {(KTMPO)}
Technical Advisory Committee

FHWA

U.S, Department of Transportation Faderal Highway
Administration

FTA

U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Transit
Administration

TxDOT

Texas Department of Transportation

TCEQ

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

PRl

Texas A&M Transportation Institute

CTCOG

Central Texas Council of Governments

HCTD or “The HOP"

Hill Country Transit District

CTRTAG

Central Texas Regional Transportation Advisory Group
BPAC

Blcycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee

Terms
TMA
Transportation Management Area
MAP-21

Mpoving Ahead for Progress In the 21% Century
{leglslation replaced SAFETEA-LU in July 2012)
SAFETEA -LU

Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efffcient Transportation
Equity Act

MPO

Metropolitan Planning Organization

UPWP
Unified Planning Work Program

mMTP

Metropolitan Transportation Plan

TIP

Transportation Improvement Program

TP

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program
STP-MM

Surface Transportation Prograrm —~ Metropolitan
Mobllity

TAP

Transportation Alternatives Program

uTp

Unified Transportation Program

CMAQ

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement
Program

UAorUza

Urbanized Area

El or "Title V1"

Enviranmental Justice

CMP

Congestion Management Process

TS

intelligent Transportation Systems

NAAQS

Nationa| Ambient Air Quality Standards

A comprehensive listing with deflnitlons |s aveilable under Transportation Planning Resources at www.ktmpo.org, Pages 61465 of
the publication “The Transportation Planning Process... is a great resource for commonly used Transportation terms,






(SYOA¥Y0D NVLITOJOYLIW) S1DAr0dd Z AHODILYD/ L NOILISOdOHd OdW
(dIL) we.Bo.4 Juswaso.dwi uoljeliodsuel | ay) Ul palsi] pue g|0z Jaquiadaq jo se Sujpuny pajedo|ly Yiim spafold (£Z0Z-#10Z) Papun4 a8uey 1ioys

sulyst 309foud uejd uoljeyiodsueu) uejljodoilaw G#0T

FTdWIL-NITTTIA

CSdAWL

vin 2 o0 000'08Y°a sl 28 o :
L s ¥ 4 6€ © 43 PY MOIA FUEIG 01 EBYZ W BuluBye “Aempeo) 3ue) € Jo ui £34 N O LTE HS 10 M SWwawaIEYU3 PeoY MAAN LI SST-9E-6060 ve-sell
[
B A 10 .
O viN o 8107 98E'965S £ £ 3 06E 501 J9pun pu 35 bieyy Juoje shemied uelzsapadfopm yay Dol o AYN1AUUDY 1S LRl 600-T0-£502 oo
0
sspuny ¢ Asod - ] 598" 7 | ~9E
spung £ AoBoe) (1-5TAd v '3 oN 810z 600’9625 9 v s SAPH WS4 110 UE UL UFIPSLI 151U UL AEMPEO) JUE e 0 uopans0d] L uojsuaNc] 10 poomasoy| 951-9¢-6060) 20-08%
[E] on 8107 5vE'6aYS 5 9 or 10 SWBIH PUE 1Q [ERIWIWO) 0 USHIISINL 1E B3 ALEN 1NISUO)| 10 sI4BRH pue 1 10 [EPIBWLIOY 18 3P dijjel oS
o Ie1258WWw07 Jo uaiasau)| 130401 £ST-9E-6060 L0-0VH)
suopesapisuc) | jpomiaN [ esegia) 0 Bupjuey
Jujpuny G ¢ 150 pajewnysy ¥ 2105 afold uopdudsaq pafold sy pafolg awey Psfosg sequnn sy | al odwi
[ejuawuoAL3 dWD parewns3 paznold pafoid ! s 5
d0 v 0dOY V4D 04d NOILV140Od v V4 OYd [0 v
000'008°29% a1 Aunod)|
s A H N 6102 000'00829% € 9E assy AeMuBiud [£30) PIPIMP BUE| | 02 7 WO USPIAY| WA 03 JUIBYUSPIH {aanoy jasay siaBoy) 06T §n| 0£0-T0-S810) I1-sem)
Ul 9ER N JOS I 0T
Suipuny (SUonEIBpIsUO) | MIoMISN | S1e@ 397 | 150D pajewinsy st |Bupjuey (2105 323(014 uondudsag 33afoid spwiy 323log awep 12alold J3quiny rs2 [ al odw.
RIUSLLILO pajewinsy ZLIO) 133l0l
0, ( Odd ¥ AdODY vV
000°000'¥$ :(000°006°15) spun4
£ foare) pue (0o0‘00L'7$) [E] oN 8102 000°000°FS 9 ke Lz (PUNO.BLLIN| ) STUMWIAOW BUILIM 2404dWI 0 UoneINSUC22s Kemproy PY %921) 18313 | punosewn] pgl s 1-£0-1£20] £0-0Fm|
spuny 7 Ki081e) 07-81A4)
suofesapisuo) [ poman [ ajeqia 517 Bupjuey
Sutpuny 5 : 3507 pajewns3 G _ 21025 133loigd uondudsag yaloly s 122foig awey 13afoid Jaqunp rsd | al o
ejuaLLiuoIALg dwd pajewiysy paznpuold J23loigd 17 * it % [ dW.LN
40 V) ANV [0 N dWO
w'a s ot 00000295 n ? eeEL spivog aessapy JweUAQ pue sesawe3 dyjen ‘sdo Jaqy o UoRINASUG) e L] [ — s1-E0-1E20) ——
' ' i ' 1A 01 5Ur] AYuno3 1pAIo)
o . aur] funa)
000'DSE'LTLS : Aodeied Te-Ted 'H s 1202 000°05T°8¥S z 6 LT89 SBUBLDIAIUL 1MLISUOD PUE PIPLAIP S3UE| INOJ O S3UR) oM Wiy uapip|  sesedure] jo m wi g ssedAg 06T 51| E£00-61-TEZO) To-5EM
0 as07 sesaddo?) jo 3
H = Tzoz 000°000'SPS T E (L ‘speas aejuol) ium S3UR| § 0] 7 puedxd pue 2BURYDINUL 1ISUO)) PATIRLmpul £9€ dao] MmN 206-90-0Z£0| LO-SEM|
03 Aa42]30W SN
P 061
=) 1zt 000000825 S ri 5795 UBIPILU PISIEL Y1 ABMDEGT PIPINP UL p 0] 7 WO1) UIPIM| B asey door ®
e | 1 uapy SatiEchind e 14 121 dool 1Z0-T0705Z( (L) evo-opm|
PR SE
4 o0zoz 000°000'S € 22BJINS31 PUE S3UR| § O] Wi 53
$ 3 3 6LER s p 191 1E00] SIUR| WEUI VORI |\ o1 oone 4 oLy 081 511 090-b0-TE20) S0-0vm|
Gon>aaip 1363 Ul Saue] SAE
P i nsuo:
000'000'78S 17 A1oBa1e) 07-BTAY [E] 4 ozoe 000'000'015 v v 0'Te 22143 UiEI31 01 3UE| 404G PUE ARG PIIES € 0} 2t SN0 yuiou gt amea| u:“.wna.g._._, 5 | aseNd 06T SN ssauisNg z90-20-1£20) a£0-06)
pie *1ofosd jo 3prs 1IN0S UG HITMPPIS PUE FUT] G “ueipaw pastel € jo uopanusuas| 110 Wl ECLTN
. . N UOHIG M W OLRZ N 190-p0 1£20)
H @A &loz 000'000°6ES 1 1 SYL8 sjuawuie duses pue Aemosy, NP 3UP| G 0] b WO1J SIUR| UHRIW L3P,
S id L uetpul) ECVE W) oar sy SPT-E0-TE20) s
— R siBuy
v/ =, {14 000’000 v uBijE el PUE ABMD3 1} PIPIAIP 3Uie] § O) W01 55 X §
000'00R'LTS I A 81 3 il T vIN S P )} PAPINP 3UL| § O] W01 SIUE) Upewl uapim| 010T¥Z W4 10 MIWDT] 06T 5N| EVT-EO-TEZD| 20-0vm|
1T uopusedold OdiN £TA-STAS y UBp SMISUEs A0 3N [ePIWL0))| 0v0-20]
=, 107 ' Ha ey j
v A £ 000'00¥ 63 v bk /N Funesod100u) SIUE| LN PUB UEIPSL “S{IEMAPIS ()i AEMPED] 3UF| 01 7 Wal) UaPIM, 0110 spjoukay Aoy TN ez geo-zo-porz Ae0STH
sjunowy duipuny (SUORRIBPISUO) | MoMIaN | 332Q 337 | 350D parewysy asn | Bupjuey (24005 3dafoig uondudsaq 123foid sy 322foig awep 123lo1g Jaquny rs) | al odwi
1ejuatutioliaug dWd P RUInE paziliold 123lo1g




TS S SUONAL550 SNOUEA) SUONEIO] SOLEA) S15) SNoLEA] ¥5-909)
DO0TOHTE VETTES SUoNd D50 SHOUTA SUOREIGT SOLEA| 5150 SnoleA| ¥A 709
917600025 Z00'7097ES SUDID53( SNOUEN SUGIIEI0] SNOLITA| sDal0ld DUELAEN s15 snoliep| LA-£09)
0% BOO'BLSTTS SUOd1II55( SNOLIEA| SUOTIE07 SnoLIEA| $1al01 g an IR UBAIL| 5[50 SNOUEA] 3d-109)
dIL ZTOZ-6107Ad dILOTOT-LTOTAY uondudsaq Pafold sywr] Pafold aweN pafold JaquinN 1S3 | a1 OdIALI
Odd d3ddNOY
» PP P’ ” “ BAL(] Yied 31RI3PSJUO) PUE PEOI 2@#R1UD1) pUNOGyLIou| LT ETENE TR TS {y1ed asn paseys uoyag ynos)
OLS'06L'TS SPUNJ VSVL LTAS 413 b bl LG 06L TS vin vIN N SE HI '9Er W4 JuojR puaixa jiim 13014 11 9% PUE 31y SPIM 3 7] 1In0suo))| O} 9EY W4 WO SE HI| INOS UOISUDIXT e | 3%Ig PUe 3)iH uolog) E91-9E-6060 SO-0vg)
P s [ V¥ wawiag,
FiUNE] oN oz VRT'BYY'ES /N viN VN 152A2q pue suelisapad 10 Yied asn paJEys 1NISUG) P e o R B s TSIl T5T-9€-6060)] eTz-0vH
668'B11'95 P EMEdS )0
SpUn v IPIMIETs STAS . Funydy pue Sudeaspuer|  yuou wu gr'pang 133y {1 95eud] 5
L ™ cl slguaEy L L AL SSPN{UE 3 0T 01 1) § W01} AIEA SYIpIM—1fied 35 paieys pue syjemapis Lrsuod| o1 Aem Japesna jo anos| ke axig pue ayy sopiioy el) wioysup| L5T-3£-6060 roord
3l 520 A Ausieaun|
Buipuny (Suonesapisuo) | yioman 238Q 397 1500 pajewns3y 0 du___u_:s_ 24035 pafod uopdudsag Palold sywr| pafoid auwep pafoid JaquinN s | dl odWI
EJUDLLILOIAUT dIAD Paiewinsl qLoud pafold
V4D 04Hd 3dISY VNHY v NOILV1HOd V4 Odd 6 AHO v d v
na'ezes i P 038M 01 EPOOA, Wa1) g5 0T 01 uolisuel | (£18 W) peoy
aie -9¢- z
spuny § Al0Ba1e) 72-12A4 ¢ o e Irares 4 4 AR HEPOO 03 3§ LB WDL} 3AY WET JO FBIS You SY1 o SyiEmapYs 5 nisuca| o3em o1 (2T Hs) s | 10 250 PAIEUS B HIEAIPIS ohuaay ET S 9E-S040) E0-si)
1g uonmysuo))
0000895 1€ pY 380 sesaddo)) (py|
. - . o 3d -6 v
sspuny 6 AIo3a1ed 07-BTA H ON o0zoz 000'0895 a1 6 8oL asnapbmpienepad o siemepsnnsiod] L uanyisuo)| @k sesaddon pa e [ o) swedseN UL TET-6E-6060) Qr0-0v)
ol pad 1l 9Y
0000085 10 91Ad 03 1 RPN WE|
4 o ' Funyd: B 331y & jo ok 6
Sy e cr etk P UNE] N 8102 000'008$ T 1 £ N YA 121} 31K PUE 3L B JO UOIPNISUO) N 1 Bomscia] B et P g S O 09T-9E-6060 £200
SUOREIAPISUC) | j1oMIaN | ajeq sl a1 Jupjuey
Auipuny £ ¥ 350) pajews3 L ¥, 121035 123(0.d uopduasaq Pafod sywn p2lold auwe pafold J3quin (s | a1 04N
[ejUallivoliAUy dind pRelisy paziliold 3ol
vVd Odd V d v O V Od Va OHd 6 H0 V Of
p— St e
1000'06¥$) 6 AioBaie) pue WA oN 0z07 0000585 6 8 8LTL S5 AaA/ueinsapad 1oy syemapis o uopnnsued] Lol on (270 uopNIsUO)) smoLie sy TET-GE-6060) EF0-0%))
(000'09E$) £ A103a18) 0Z-81 Ad w0} 1 UBNNISUO))|
SUONEIapISUCD) HomaN ajeq 1a] 15 dupjuey
Buipuny E i Y T 1500 pajewnysy ¥y ¥ 2105 paloigd uonduasag pafoly sy palosy awep Paloly Jaquiny 153 | al odWDI
I i T f Jr !
Jejuatuuolny dWD pajeluns3 pazijliold Pafoid
OHdd 6 40 v Od d V 40 V 4 d 0
2uQ-VZN Apdwa)
¥IN ViIN reoz 000'SPLTS viN wIN ¥/N uonepodsuel| 3pLol4 O] $3sng aseyInd| ‘omL-yZn udaq | waloid wawadeday 15314 ALIH| 506-9€-6060| TO-Srv]
‘usues) Anuned JItH
12215
" J21IN5 pue QINd YL
000°Z00ET d oN 1207 TOR'SS'TS £ 9 Ve 01 01 H any Buoje Aunnzauuo) jied A ajpaueion| 106-9E-6064| PO-OFN
uawaARd USPLA [SYEMSSOUI pUE ‘sdwel “fjemapis INISUO;
spuny £ MoBare 72-T2Ad REATY i s Tar OLPAIEN (oynbsow yuion) yieg
pag mopeapy
H'd ON Tzoz 861°862°015 v L 979 1 358Uq ‘137In8 pue QIND pue AemMpEO) PIPUIP S3UE) f 01 7 WOLJ UdPLM A0 O YINOS Y S 1 @seyd-1sap doo] sang sjdusa | £06-9£-6060| eL0-0v1
01 52N J0 YINoS 34 725
WIN WIN gLOZ 000'S19°'TS WIN V/IN VIN $35ng aselIn g| V7N S afoid Wwawadeday 199t Z9T-95-6060) 5T-0vY]
3451 10} BTGNS g “SHEMOPIS ‘BUnNS] SPNV] 01 SIWSWBA0IOWY 1S UEW] Pu3 yuon) g T 55614 DEMAPIS 15 WEW 0701098 1] TR0
§1°70Y H oN 8102 956'919°'TS ] ! 4 1018 adayj00 03 4q e2el4 OpEjEs|
15501 PUE UBNS3pad 0] Y1Ed 350 paiels PRSI0 PAE 11l OY @ AT UEWHIL TRepn uBwIL sapeyd] SmoTieN oul| TET GE-GOGU| ETiE)
B4 01 30 UenIMpSUD
H3 oN ozoz 0000415 ] T ZEOL spha g |
w01y Aep 1 sapreny)|
s P . S3UE| 341 PUE SHIEMBPIS JUEHdWaD PNASU0)| 15 SILUAQ 0] pGT SSousng| Emapy 3
SSEVETTS P y o 00's265 A 5 [ | 94 PUE SAERIPI R W0 YOy DHEMPIS IPOE B 91T W L00-TO-TETE p—
1spung £ AioBale) 0Z-8TAd £10-T0-821E
W = o e i N Fee s152A01g pue ueisapad o) yied 3sn paseys nsUO)| (06| S RoKdu £50-T0-Z€ 20| st-ovl}
i Ands) PAIE AT XTI 01 SE HI| UEMIS3PaY/aaANR Ay [EAUD/aRY Sulepy) 6E0-F0-7R10)
= TELTIN JO SPIS 4109 U0 SY[EMapIs 9 Jo uopieeasul| P 43a1) uohue) TTPLTING] SHIEMIPIS 15 15TE, 850 20 5581 Tiovl
- E
¥/N A (3774 0000055 T T SEV6 P
OTFZ A 18 PUNCIBUINY 1583 0153 B JO UOINASUO)| 1563 Ad X [£1163) 15¢]| 01¥Z Wi 12 061 SN LYT-E0-TECO| TOGEH
/N ) ozoz 000°000°55 8 9 e 0 Adx3 x) fenua) 1se3
[:23aniy3s Uels) 02 vE W3 pue spel| OLVEWII0 S TN 561 HS| ££0-20-9€ 80|
¥ L0
[E] T 610z 000'008S ¢ v 8y 8301 ST HS MO 2JJeI] PUNOGUINDS PUE PUNoqyLoY 1o ssediapun punosewn | 10 0 0ZFE 19 NI T°0 i




{dooy §5) 0LYE W4

OHd V

ahri0}.

s108(0.d adueUIjULIRY DALIRIUDASIY pue ‘Jisuel] ‘AjljiqeAl]/sadtoy) uoljeliodsuel)] ‘Aempeoy pasodoid

&5 oy aBurpaay UONANISUEIRY (00 $5) OLFE WA 1€ S6T HS =
e} A aat 000°05¥°25$ 143 62 LTS N e e T ( ) OLVE WA 28 5 v/ 0-SEM)
HT3 oN aaL 09E'EP9'SS TE 14 SV6S 11R23 24iq PUE 23] DI ¥ LA ABMPEQL SUE] § 0] 7 WOLJ UDPIM [ g 0£9T W VN or-ovl
< Sj3a1) 32441 01 064 S|
SUOHNOS BARISUDS 1X2IU0I IO pue .
H'3 oN aaL 000°000'sS (3 ar 6L'09 SUBIPILL ‘SHIEMOPIS ‘DUSWIAGIGWIL 25RUIRID JONU0D AemdaLipludwaieuew o e s s (PMIE |ELIOWRIN SURIIBA) DET SN Ssaufsng VN TO-OEH|
ssaoe Jannd B qind Tesut ‘ajyoud Aempeol acnpay
Saue| o3 pue) P [EEdE|
7 g ach
(¢! el oal gocfoo LS 5 £z L) SAEMIPIS M SUS] LN J31U3] SNOURNOD € Y14 SIUE| | 01 7 Wio1) ALMPEO] USPIM) 01 py (peadaders| e A e Y ar-on
sy
4TV H oN aaL 029'90E'9% 24 14 Y09 SHEMIPIS (LM BUE] LN J33U3) SNOUNUOY € Y3im saue| 017 oy Aempeos uapim| Ax) 1pnos o1 uoiasiau)| 7z aseyd (peoy axe] asnoyjis) TEVE WA v/ POSFH
peay jeLiedey) pasodold
o a8L 000'005'ES 4 f4d 431InS pUE GIND pUE SAUE) S]2AN] LR SIUE] O} 7 WOJ) UDPIM 0 13584d - T8 XL PIO w/N| £0-000)
H N £ 5519 Ia13n8 pUE qIn pue sauE) 2. L] oy el ot
(sBuissau) ¥y #)
(55 °oN aaL 0000055 9z 114 SL'E9 K1ajes pue suoNAULOD J319q Jo) sButssald apesidn| peoy Jiqqey Yoer 01 Py Ayajes Buissos) peajjey jAUEON| VN 90-0FN|
Areawad 1y weseard
[E] A a8l 675 68RYS [13 [ 50 ¥9 PATE 11BH [V O3 20 119 3€ [2U3ts 2jen a1e20}a) pue 3ue) Wm PRY|  PAIE IIBH 1V 0130 ow| A BUNOA S VN 100
uBrsop JepownNW 23esodiooul A PUE SIIHEN g PUR 24K “1oNNS
r =, oAl 000005 14 6T sv'va 5 : W 2aY 01 £9¢ doo] 35 suawanaidw| p6Z Nds/13315 15T 'S v/ B9E-GE.
2 4 2 PUE QI U1 AEmpeol POpIIP aUE| ¥ 0 POPIAIPUN BUE 1 Walj L3P d o5
Lo ¥L HIF061 SN
e oN aaL 008 TBE'ES 24 18 s5v9 sso13 quod n unp e e TowAl et (ne1y ueipu) EZVE W) vIN TO-STH
PUE UBIpOU ‘SY|EMIPIS LI ABMPROI LUONDOS-SS0.D UBGIN U 320I5U0 )| L
i 3n10 Bunoj 'S M 18 pY ireodadiers pue py peodades pue pyl P jeLedei))
(£} L) e0e 000'000°65 T St O USRS ] JE SINOGEPUNGI PUB 3UP| LLIN] J3JU3T B (JM SIUR| IN0J O OM) WD 1) USPIAA) a) py peadade)s| A0 R et VN EED
? (any suiepy) SOEZ W4 pue| uopeindyuaday
) ' ) e (any o 3 ut 32035U0: v/ 1208
[} A aaL 000°000°RTS 1z +T £9€ d1 Pue (9aY swepy) SOEZ W4 1€ afueyuaiul Jasucday e doe o ot r e v S h M)
|000°001 '¥9£S Buspuny aduey Juo)
d oN aaL 000°LPTES oz €1 66's9 Aemprol PApIAIR 3UE) | 0) 7 WoJ) UBPLM) SE HI 91 0£9T W] YRV ) /| £1-06M|
= a o’ R hish) T aseig (Aea satuy 3) : " o
8L 009°795'S$ st s SES3 PUE Ja1In8 PUE GIND YI4M SUE| LIN] SNOUIIUC) B M SIUR| | D1 7 WO1j UaPIM| SIOLLIEM D] Py qouy Jepa)| Ud (AEM S4B T) DTPZ W ) ViIN To-svH
H =4 aaL 000'88S'TLS 1 b ¥#'99 Y dn 3¢ uogeledas) 56 HS 91 TvLT W4 £6 W] /N 80-5EM)
BpERIE 15NIISUCD PUE URIPILI Pasiel B Jo) 3psasd ‘saue) p 01 7 Wou) Uapim|
S3UR] [BAEL1 BPISING B} L0 SUE| 3PAIG 'SUGIIIASIAIN 13315 Je SAUIEs D)
i Ym s3U1550.0 UELNSIPId *ABM-J0-14BU IPIS INOS U1 U0 NEMIPIS 9 “AEMPEC] 3Y) o] yinos art 7
[El T {4414 000'00¥'LS a o1 9’89 e Al e e 11 25844 - 06T SN Ssaussng /N e£0-067
‘UBIPAUI PISIEI LM SUB( 1IN 13| PAJIOIIIG) B 0] 3UR| LINY JBJUSD 341 1AL
[E} A agL 000'vRL'9TS 91 8 9E'89 Lrsnbli 56 HS 01 067 Indg £9€ do91/061 51 VN £2-0Em)
1€ uoy 3 pue spea; aBeIuo.) SNOUNLI Yl Aemaai) aue] y o) apeiddp
uoypasIaw]
P N (734 00599595 st ¢ £E69 SHEMIPIS. U1 SUB LLINY 131UB) SHOUNUOD € )M S3ue § 017 Woi) kempeos uapim| peay feneidey) pasodold| 1 aseyd (peoy 23e) asnouis) TRIE W vIN FO-SPH
o1 jte1] o11ads01d|
61ZE]
g ¥ i Saue] wo.
e} oN a8l DO0'GESTLS (3 9 LzoL 19,03 AL L s A sproldan Ao EV /N 0 -SEM|
o 000'STL'9E €1 1 A aue) p 0] 7 woly aipuE| s ..
d N aaL S S £9TL EMPEQL PIPIAIP JUE) § 0] T uIpim) uoyeg eXe] 03 LTE HS| HS| VN 2o-sem|
4
(E} =A EZOT 000'0LV'ETS fas ¥ £LT1L SHIEMOPIS Laim peodjiel 45HE Sunsbe sy Je ssediapun ue ajeas)| aay o3 (Ayoey Sudped ssediapun) pRoIped 91T W4 wiN APZ0-5£)
Sunso ySnong) upey 5|
H'r3 =4 aaL 000'D0L'6Z1$ o1 T 18 S9UF) § 0} UBPLM PR JoNNSU0DY| E9E 4907 01 $T HI/OGT SN SE Hij VN 190-511]
o oN o 5 5 sanpbe pad S “Kes oo | oty T Pajo1d USWSIUEYLS e
oL 005'00ES SY9E ane; pad/ayiq pue seue) Wm ppe ‘Aempeol SUBPIM| SE HI 03 Pl Plowsy sewoy] T S S e 7 E0-OVS
e 1A wayshs jeny Junsixa o) #1 HI/O6T SN o1 py afoid URLISIPaJfanig
o ¥ .
L e Dace0ils 1 S we 12U 0y wa1sks ien Ssn-inul ppe pue i PO U0 3%piiq 1 s|  sinueion pio vo adpug|  pue uosuedxy slipug proy alAuEON PIO) viN ECOM
Lo 3pIs 3529 uo y3ed XIq/ey SPIM 0T ¥ PUE BPIS 153M UD JEMIPIS 1 9| PH S{HAURIIN PIO|
L = L fc6 w63y ¢ (= N “1NS pue qin3 ‘J00Y)S 25N 1€ 3| WINL 13| E YyM Uodas peas auej omy e ajean| o1 (Aem syBiuy) OTRZ W4 speisd ied tioflem VALY SoDE
i on a1 000'005°%5 9 I s SuUoWaACIdW! 2§PUQ SaNINE PUB GIND LM ‘S3UR) § 01 T Wol) uap) w1 sig (18 P10) PY 9eM yLioN il To-ora
7 g 15O 0135 UIRW 159M|
o “sanyze) vey axe] mojioH 1 ZLT-9E-6060]
o Y0DO'EZ 65 e Liede:
GHEL N FE0C i 3 A 2 o PUE 334319 Y1t AEMPEOS P3pAP 3UE] 01 T W01} ALMPED] LBPIM PUE 1NISU033Y TBYE W4 03561 HS LAt i SLT-9E-6060 o
000°005°P¥S :Buipun, aluey vioys
: r e S SE-H1 01 mopeaiy
Hd ©oN Lzoz Z08'10L'63 v a 99 03 s3ue) 1P3p 9iq PUE |1ED 4iq T | e 113584 153 doo] JaanQ ajduss | | VLT-9E-6060 aso-ovi]
$2pNp3UL (19118 pue qIND pue ABMPEC PIPIAIP I S3UR) I 0 T WOJJ UIPLM)
d'H'r3 sk €202 EFEV6LES 3 a1 89 SH|EMBPIS 100} § PUE SUR] 341G © L3I ABMPROI SUE) § 0] 7 WOLJ UIPLM) PY 1B3YM 01 £LE HS 7 pue T aseud £6 W 9ZO-T0-SERT L1-0em)
SUOREIAPISUDD | SHOMIBN | ajeqgial 3 Bupjuey
JBuipuny % = 3500 pajewns3 g Y (21035 pafoig uopdusaq yaloid spw Pafosd awey pafod Jaquinp s | a1 OdLY
[EJURLILOIAL] dWD pajews3 paznuoud paloid




L]
papunjun el Aetiojiay

&G

£ oK £202 000°025'95 29 9 3314 SYPMAIPS 3 9 PUL k) VNSNS FCHULICY € YUW SRUE| £ 01 AEMPEO) DNUISUC R dovl caany Funosase peoy A1) Jamay N 50
— . s fiopRiog iy
or FEOZ 000'000°vS o] 8 6 EE saue) 2y zonmedl ot ere 1S 2apQ aiujag 23e1 ¥/ syl
g BUEIRUE] o ANUBAY I
s N hia i » o e PUT Fup ‘SYERIP(S ST 4 PPE PUE S3UP] £ 0) ABMPRO) PANSUDIY 15108 3 I5 v Fanay i b orsel
+1 HID6E,
4 ' - .4 SHOLLIE; e, 01L)E
H o qaL SSTE0L'SS ] 53 208 Fhe HIZD61 S 01 IREd SIOLURM PUING| o o e veren 101 135EY UOJSUSI B SI0MEM) ¥/N £0-0FN
» . . 1aue)
4B =) o0zaz 200D09'TS ] v fig 3 10 & e I ] L I Ap—— ¥/ Tor5EN
- TSPy 43oq g PU UIAUEYS
H or 0z0z 00'TES'ES ] £ 05T [PROpis P § e 4o pue s w40y 7 o3 s o1y aRewoss g4 uawsADIdI] proy aunbsaly Wi sl
sty
W1 oN oL 000°000'BS ™ &) oLty Aespeas RIpAPR HIE] 03 T W00J) BIPIM| Wd ©1 061 SSUSNRIPAE SIZEN VN EOOEH,
TEHMLB SUBINIA
" ok oL VEG'REE'TS 1w i SR SAPINGUS (A Aemprnl aug) 2 33uTSI) 65K W3 1 Py uorsuaTaq uosIM 3103 o To05a
i uosa, BA1090 18 56 W
e unpERlg KR
& N ozoz LGS ®» @ 05Tk [pur ‘saueyaxa 5 ‘3ur)winy 2auas snouRuGD B Yy ABMDEQ) SLEHOM) MU BNIILA] 3§ 151 *S ULIQ amMT] S FETY| v sl
Py 2anuoy|
Arsapral aul Kan)
] oN oL 000ST'ES &5 55 T DU LM JATEAD Uk Arap ) Z 330500 SF 141 9 4 UoTiUEEm aapg Asny w/N| 10-0%4)|
— [EX
L4 A au dav )
oH L: 1 000090215 L B IWER JIPINOYS L4 ARMPEG SURY 7 JHLSLOY)| o Py [y 1se3dac]ang ualeg w/N| £0-0eg|
—_ ) PTHI/OGT SN 38 pAd
oN 5202 oo0'000’0T$ ® 15 bEEp ASes YU L USRI L el uCpeINE,uaTaY Ny ejoN v/ SoSeN
A oN asL OSSP % % 5O SBUE) 23] PUR D{EMIDIT Y ARmpro, ey 7IANSU0D]  PUYeM 0F 171 oo LELEAE Y ¥iN w00l
BafspIpns|
— o aeL 000°0Z80TS 2 1] [ 84) Aesmpearaue]  POsTIOD) Sjpar aay)| HO01 1IN0 - 1534 PROY UIpUEYS YN 0468
40Pua 3583 01 5 H|
THY 'K oN [ DOOTO0'SES [ [ BOSY AEMPEO] PAPINP SUR| | 01 T WIN7| UIPIM, SE HI 1 56L HS| VRV W] ViN 200V
. N “ue| Ny 331635 .
¢} o €07 COOIES © % o5y [ prey s—— . L DT L R 3nuasy Junoy e3 ¥/N r-sel]
[
— o Tz 000'000'03$ = 3 ERLY e 2) ¥ pue {inds 6E¢ W4) WMOGEPUNY BEY W N TSN
15 Ui JC uoaLR
T o [T COSTOT S 15 1] oSy U Uit S ips Aempeas aur] T 3anasmog] g ay 03 1T8 doo) Aew 18 § FamIpNGS] 7| ool
TET
. N P Py [Eae
H'T3 £ qat 000'ZIS'EES [ & Ha TR0l FREUeI) I ABMSAU) T ¥ 01 1N {doase) aeve Wl 56T HS N £0-5EM)
[ sy a6t 000515 & W agee [=Es e Neasull ¥ 000 102 HS o rudls ¥iN szony
JeaLAutng Ji uogasiagu 2uead (Py 1391 1533} TOZ HS/ies) Auung
N BT E6|
¢} °N aaL 000'888ZES ar 9 bEEY [P Jaw Wiz 03 doay La3FOQ XH 35 Peoy Jangy AUy ¥ l1g 01
atre)|
USSP fepouinin Mesodiou i pue yed
o " . J ! Aa)
H N deL ooc'oos'es 4 s¢ E9TS 2% PAIRYS 7} SAPATIU “1030F U QIS “auey W) SIPpRL ppe pue Lapg] ~ 2V CUPIM IS 5 1 05 [z seyd) proy Aajda| /N w1y
O3 SOET Wi Jo 51 959
[E] =A aeL 000'0SKZSS [ i SES ARURpUAUL SpEIEd))| 56T HS V| BT HYOY 511 S6T Hsf VN so-sem)
? . P uakze)
B wi ed
dH N g6L [atired sv ™ orys T/ER X PUE 24 2PI (1 LU ) WM P 2270:d Jocsuen) <tango 128 doo PEoy FLwdg] wiN 20078
[E] N aeL 05K 2695 » 13 s 131IN3 pUE QINJ ) U4 UGNIIS JUR) § 0] T W) Uafiml g sddser oF py sw3 Py ou3cy4] W/N s y]
[} N aeL OSI'8Z9'ETS o or s qa . pad (i s5ediano GUE) @ JMASUGDE 10 J2dser 01 Py EIUAIGIE § apsuedxq SFppg sacsey| wiN ey
K ol 006" ey [ SBUE] } 03 T W1} U P eueder) HUBIAY I 2w
¢a H agL 00000645 L 3 PESS 1P € Yhian SIUE] P 02 T WAL} UL P i—— i proy 19w v fagiey
il N geL DORCYL'SS 1w o€ 55 peisa ko Zaseyd {AEm 43|03 °3) DIFZ AN ) W To5eH
PUE S37300 PUE G103 L AUE] Vit FOVIUOI € Yl SIURT P 03T WL UDPIMY RWILINY O3 4iEd Siopsem)
weddg 041 501 09
o 000'000'5T! ¥ EL B SUE) LINY SNOULIUDD L LA au oSl
H H aeL (143 o I3 s FINCLS pUE SuE) U0 LU Pecy ¥ Sue) § 13usua)) (P8I0 28913} 10T HS S| 0L PE M| VN Toov
SIAQDE) padzaniq Yis| P Lo
o
" " e ferees hid % pi AT} W WS *SIPINOYE L PRI U 0y T ) Lapy pue saRASaS] U o1 ) HIros S P LR bl i
[F] £ [T [ 3 5E LE9S UEip pasiel ® Joj apuaud 'sauk] | O] 7 1) UIpL| 5E HS 01 66 HS Esmd Vi 50-5EM]
. . £
) Jaua
n N agL 000'FPT'SS = * s DHLRMIPES P G PUTE K] S0 SIIUD3 [k SR § OV T WAL ISP g oo e B jRuve) VN 1o-0vel
uatodstien| 061 ss2usng|
n o €207 0007000PLS 9t " ¥ELS 0 S3UE] PAVEIPIP i pLIE N1} 31 B 1286 1491 N SE HI 123 - doo1 2 sidura /N [yl
(R PN} LN PUE GHD PUE ARsmpeal PIPLAP SUE] ¥ J0 UORInuis,
‘H'ra o [T 000'002'6¥S 5€ I LS LB 3p3% 0T YU AEMIEDE SUR) | 115U /T W3 910487 W3 (Peoy ame) O1aE] ) [ZZZ N /N 11070l
[F] £ a1 5 [ 3 sFE5 N ASHE PUR D6} SE0UENY Jaa0 Wofeledas aperd §anmso)) SSEIIA 66T HS, W/ SO
- N ozor DOO'CEB LS 33 o Es "SRUE] A PUE DjERap)s SAI 19315 YYM AIEIENDIOY TeLME PNTo), ORI Yt 15T yinos sL ar-se1f




s

RN oN viN v/N wiN /N VIN Sjuowaseidu pad/oyiq YK ARMPEOI PAPIAIR BUE) | 0] 7 WOL) UIPIM SEF W4 01 GE HI 7 aseyq 17} doo] viN av0-ovm|
d'H'3 =h /N ¥/N VN wiN viN UBIPALI PAsiel LA ABMPROI PIPIAIR SUE) | 0] 7 Wouj USPI) SE HI 01 06l 5N q1 2seyq 17} doo ¥/N ZER0-OvMm
H'T3 K4 N VIN VIN viN ¥/IN aBueyuayul 1annsuod| aduenu3l yodity uaapy yodity uaspy @ 107 HS] /| 90-0Em|
&= °N w/N v/N VIN VIN VN susis/sjeudis Jyjen aqissod pue uoisuedxa sapnoys ‘aur) Suium ppy| 13e Mv..w“ uawasoid) L13)es s Wi VN OT-0FN
o oN /N VIN v/N v/IN v/N Aempeos auw) 7 39n15U0)) &EF W4 01 061 SN| 11 a5eY4 UoISUAN Uiy SJoLuiem| V/N| 80-0FN|
PY SUOWRUIS)
Foh SUOOINIOS BALISUDS 1X2IU0D pue ‘sjudiluaaosduil afeuresp ‘saue) Sunum
H'13 oN ¥/IN /N vIN viN /N 0 3ieq Aunwwod 0T W43 N POOVH
; ‘Janng In> UL 03 A red;
1oUIL0D JuBtLIFRURW $53008 “JaNNE | QINJ 2pndut 03 Aempeol puedig e e
W e 4o3n8 pue qind Lk saue) § 0} 107 HS 01 S|
v'H'3 N ¥IN v/N ¥/N ¥iN vIN 7 Wty Aempens uapim ‘SIS i 0 Py UIEIOW Ar] pue py deg A apeiBdp) A awo seieddon oS 911 W4 viN 10-0v)
— aSeutelp uuoys
oN ¥/N /N vIN viN wIN PISOYIUS 1 15INE PUIE G e paws PSIE) A SIUE) b 03 7 WGd) USPEM 9LLWA O ELLE WY doo apis Yyuon w/N $0-57)|
Py
H oN /N /N vIN wiN viIN S{iemapis Juendwo)- VY YIlm SIUE) 0] 7 W01} SUSPLM|  SIDURUNS 01 § AY/9LL E1LL WS W/IN| 20500
W4 1 3431 Jeusig
H on vin viN viN vin /N 1R x/o PrIsuo) pue Aempeos uawdiens pue uopy| P 1Z1PdEND U0 sy peoy jeLiedey) N oom

A uaajiy 01 T8VE W4|




S UdWBEs)

’ o 000°00E'T viN vIN vIN B4 ueLy; 405 yyed asn RELTH eLed g
mv'a N VIN s i/ 4 ) 24 pue uewsapad Joj 4y PaJeys 3ansu0D)| Py Jeuedey))| 111 319 B K s¥eg alieyLialy w/N|  qiz-oeN
Sl *syudLwasaduwy 1q ezR)d
[ 0 a5 EAMIPIS 15 Ul W/N| 9r0-0FS
53°24% 'H N w/N VRO'ECZ'ES wIN wiN vIN e siried w71 S0 RIpIM Juewsaned S0l 00 ) Leusasasikis v S oFeyes o4 a0 1| 36855 T 95YJ SHIEMBPIS IS Ureyy) N |
— " = 134y|
I 6N nw ue U0 I -
oN ¥/ 000'00VS viN viN vIN TR0 36N Qi SpM ) 8 UE Do £l et 1111 POOM PYLM| vN|  £L-oYN
511 Papunjun /paJoasy s 100425 01 ey yBnaul
30 pApUnLn/p ) oN VN VIN VN viN viN wayshs uo saue] ig 7 s5e)D PRY| RS siatnd Al asepyEnosouy amg peoy 19qey e, w/N|  ZLORN
PUE 6EF W4 1 061 5N
Suissol) Aol 01 Py
oN vIN VIN ¥/N ¥iN vIN ) UejoN Suy fen) 25n-0iNW 34 0} 3NsUO)) tes) wayshs uej wiN|  LL-ovN
H i i U h U #2a1) uejoN Butpieeq || w3 SNALEION P10 U0 8pLig Ieiy S 140 %2913 uRlON) U
" . 1.34y|
al YN A/ L/ aue) » | 39475-U0 551 JINUsUO° leSea)
H N ¥/N 000°'005% i/t N N SEL LR Ppasajyng ‘7 sse) » 01 DALQ §ED SWoSIUT T P 11 { V/N|  60-0FN
il 2 15 }1ead 01 (LTE HS) 35 UIEW JO UORI5I0U1 € 2ImpnIsel U Bujsson) 15|
oN a8l STTEORS 7 sz 6265 e 11sopad Je1su| pUe 3aY [£1103) J0 3pis HMOL 110 YEMBPIS Spim 1) G B.arapesddn| peay o1 £TE He)is ey TS SHIEILTAIEMIPIS Inusay fenu2) vIN 90-5v8|
d oN aaL 000005 9z ¥ £l SHEMSSOII M MEMDPIS § PNNsu0D|  JiEd| uadsy 0110 AEMPIA H{EMBPIS peoy AtopiH| wiN S0-5p1
I S U0 15
SisNkoIq pue suetnsopad
53 'H ‘T8 oN aalL 656'BIES 14 £z w9 10} yped D et % !.H”:esa Jarusuon| 240U 40 N 1l 60°0 01 4q| 1ans edol - Haeq a5 paieys yoa1) opefes wIN To-05|
T 1H @83)100 18 35 ey
d N £207 000°0ZLS ¥z 24 8579 e 3 8 341y 8 PNASUOD) 5] Jed) %331 uoke))| vIN 10-5v1}
2 suoF] 01 10 ¥331) Uokue))|
P oN a8l 0051965 £ 1 189 \ . 28 40 YuoN 03 15 Ul Auansauuo) ands GEr Wl vIN S0-OFN|
siapinoys asosduwit ‘sjemssosd pue sdwiel yay ‘y|emapts apim 0| 3nnsuod|
Uorsuai|
= oN £207 000'005$ 44 oz s8'E9 SU01335 J1e1) BUNISIXG 0] 133UU0 PUE PUSINS 01 8] 33G/4 3piM 1) 0T 1n11sU0)| 2imn4 15 151 °5 01 Ve yoa1) siepy) ¥/N o5y}
snujua] iE1] %821) Siep
5 o Hegd
S5 asL 000056 1z &1 889 en 2 83200500 )
d'H 3 Ten apwy g 2! suiusds Sanm 01 50ez Wi HeIL TL2E W) vIN s0-521}
s A1ed
L] i P led] 2 ue ) M PNISUO, wol UG Yy Jegd anE W
d N £207 000°0¥9'7$ 0z 8T 95'v9 1e11 3x1q pue 2y apim 3 § s | e o 1RSUUE) ey e i) ¥/N 105y}
[} oN £207 000°STES 61 P ¥8'59 THEMSSOII PUE SYEMIPIS SPIM Y § PNNSUO) BERLDAE) 23 {S0ET) SHEMIPIS 3410 Syredy| vIN 60-5v1}
W) aaY swepy 155m)
E 15 SIBPUNES 01 15 [[BUU03) \W0Jj SSUE| £ 03 UBPIM PUE AEMPEC] 1NISUG28)) 35 sIepunes|
[E] oN aaL L9VBIVS E1d a1 99 e e s LA T LE] s | IR ISRIND M ool ymewmapls H sfisany ¥/N Lo-5pa|
000'009'T¥S (190425 JIPpi Weyuog
:Buipuny aduey Juo d oN aaL 000'SLES Pas st £r99 =N 5pua 3 g 19nnsua)) ) LB 1] 10)dariayu| Y3313 piig w/N szovl)
1] o 0] e AJunuwwo)|
suot] jo apis |
o Aled Biaquasoy| Py Y0 Uosiod 01 {S0ET
o
4 i R aeoTasEs AL s ) ua YEnaly) pue py 33piH Fad S JO 1sew yed seauy Fuoje Jen apim Y § Pnursuo) W) ary swepy 159 LR e e N 2ok
[E] =4 a8l 000'0565 51 a8 1L%9 MEMIPIS IpIM 1} 9 DRNSUOD)| SHEMIPIS SWEPY 1SOM v/N #0-5p1}
vajod]
21103 Fuoje aBeudis APAXG YU anY 419 3 01 PROIIE] WOLJ IPIS 15IM uo|
" A . ’ ‘ .
4 N aaL 005782% 7T 4t 6 e e e e e | B B AL E M P HEmapis 13315 |eag ¥/N ro-sv|
15 1INIISU03 ‘15 FUIUMO 01 3AY NP7 "3 W01 3PS 15E3 U0 HEMIPIS 5 1NIYSHO)
s 7 7 Fuidesspue)
43 °oN aaL 000'009% £1 at 6269 e R e T e i e e U L TR TR SHEMIPIS jenua) 1563 VIN £0-5v)
o e 7 e a8pyg uss=pag Y31 1IMYINOS) v
d'H'E oN a8l OBV IST'ES f44 6 SOTL HEL 2AIG/34Y FPIA 3 0T N05U0D) o T e \ossuayes yel] wygpie si) Licweg) V/N| Z1-0v8)|
G 15 32sawwo) uoje Jaund pue qind apirasd Py yed [esnpul [1A13
H °oN aaL EEEEET'TS R 2 ST ot o pre e T e e e T o S e e e o Wied 350) PAIEYS [E1ISNPUL /2B WIL0))| VN so-5v8|
7 ‘PUNOIAISPUN SINIIN SIEIO) PUE IPIS Py sBeIu01]|
sa)
e & S TR £ 5 e 1IN 3Y] U0 d11S 3P 1 OT “3AY 109 J0 IPIS YLIOU 0 Yemapis apim ) 9 PAsuod|  ge-] o) (LTE Hs)ag wpepy| 'V ¥ PRITHS W XIMIPIS anuany g vy EE
Hd'a 3] ‘0zL'es A el 115 PUE pue SHEMBPIS UMOIUMOY
A Gt gogRzic L v CA puE Syjemssos) ‘sdiel 23ueydiios-yy Yy syemopss ieda pue pitsuos| o1 91ua) ) utogheyy| TS PAE PUEIST - SHEMIPIS uMotumoq Wi R
ET-OPL| aBpug|
. o ' e1] o UMm0PR1030 5,01 -
i " s oapere g z 1o PUE S0-0pE 322/0.d O4NLY 323uuen o3 ed asn paleys apim 3 0T 3n435ua))| Jany uoa a1 g aay 3| bttt Uiy Josrs)
e - . 5 R 5 e
d'S3°7uv oN qaL S96'6615 L fid ¥rLS TN AL OLAIOBD L seoe Sivg aoey A 338 3{jE1| PEOY-)0 4oa1) OpEjes| ¥/N| z0-0rS
000°000°5$ e °oN ozoz 000'00Z°TS 9 14 58S SIsy7431q pue ueLnsapad Joj yied 3sn paleys 1DANSUCD|  JQ UmE 0F JUCISAS| 7 1dwBA |ies| 341G B IH Sie0 BeWIH VN 105w
:3uipuny 23uey Joys — ¥ w3 8ig
! ' i w : . :
ON Loz 000°00L'TS s 143 069 Anpey 3p4q/uewnsapad apwm 01 1UIsU0))| 1594 01 35 U 159 Hemapss - (18 PIO) 'PY 03em yuoN /N zo-0vQ
da'H'a oN 9707 000'000°7$ z € EL¥E 1) 40 /53Y 2P 1) 0T 1ansuo)| E6 W3 01155 S Siie1] o) sjey umoBioag sapduiay £4T-95-6060] E£1-08L
SUOREISPISUC) | OMIaN | ajeqaal isn dupjuey
Jduipung £ o 150 pajewys3 5 X 24035 pafoid uopdusaq Pafold sy pafold awen pafold Jaquin s | 1 odwL
[RIUaWIUDIAUY dWD pajewns3 paznliold pafoid
Odd SAY O OlLV140d VY




JBpJ0 BY3 30U 51 15| 211110114 “3J035 [E10] UD paseq payuel sem 1aaloud Ayjiqeay Ayuoud doy sa1ua Suniwgns yaes 51 ay3 jo do ayl 03 panow sem afosd A;

SWIWPUIWY INIENSUIIPY
9TOZ ‘LT ¥snidny

9T0Z ‘02 Idy

9T0E ‘0z Menuer

SI0Z ‘8T 49quidaaN

STOZ ‘TT Menuer

5a1EQ WIWPUIWY dIW

6T-dy-/T

6107 ‘9T Arenuef
F10Z 'vZ 429000
BI0Z 'PT BN
«£T02 'TZ 4agquasag

+LTOT "9T Jaquianon
«LT0T ‘8T 3sndny
«L102 'S Ainf

£107 "Iz 2unt

9107 ‘9T Jaquianon

“paau pafoud pue “Aljqe|ieae Suipun) ‘ssauipeal 13aloid ‘Bupyues 3(oud 03 PAYIWI| 10U ING SB YINS SI0138J SNOLIEA UG PaSE] S| SPUNY JO UDJ1Ed0(e pue Jujpun) jo

en| doy sapiua Buliugns yaea paudisse 2iam sjujed snuoq Jayy inas Auond Jydg © sem 193foud siy) asuss sjulod SnUDQ Jo JaqUINU Wnwixew 3yy uand sem 1aford sy “Iaaamoy ‘a3nol sy

Buoje Ayjere) ayy ajepowodde o} sjuiad snuaq panaidas 3APINOM SO-S¥E 900d “Funaaw BTOZ ‘8T JAqWIACN 23 3B Jv.L Aq passnasip se spuiod snuoq Jnoj Paaapal €0-51E 19310.d "/ TOZ-ETOZ WO E1EP UG Paseq Paje|nojed asam salel yses) sainol asayy Juoje §T0Z U} poAINI20 1ey) S30)|EJR) UO Paseq uoYag jo AYY 3y} way §0-Spd PUe £0-Spa sivalosd

03 psodoid a1am s3uj0d snu0g *(S0-5k8 PUR ‘TO-S¥E ‘FO0-OFN "ET-07L '9Z0-SE} I¥dG AQ Mopd & pawasp asam 1ey) 519alo.d o) uanid 35am s1ui0d snuoq aa)) ‘553503 5143 JulIng "BTOT ‘57 J3qUIBAON U0 JYL A PIpUSWILIO®. Sem 3s1] Paues AYLIGRAT] Zrb 6E6FES 40 1503 (303 PRIRwInEa e yaim siaslaid

Buung pasu 1afoid pue Aypqejiese Buipun; ‘ssauipeal 1afoid ‘Bupjuel 1afoid 0) payWi| 10U 1N SB YONS SI01IB) SNOLIEA LD PaSeq $1 SPUN) JO USHE3|jE puR upuny JO 13PI0 3y} JOU 51
pajuels 3y 03 sadueya JayQ ‘21025 12afoud 230} LD paseq payuel asam spafoid 3
"810Z "pZ 4200320 U0 gdd L Ag pancidde se ueld |epowniny |euciday sy3 Ul paleIOU sE JopLIB3 1y#iay) B Lo 31| 1eY) s1paloid o) pappe aiam sjuled snuag

I9Al L7 J0 [£30) £ pasaDal OdINLY 310N,

*spunj Joj S1EPIPUES ® 51 139f0ud 511 1 Paddpys 3 (1m 193(04d SIU3 JEAIMOY “JUEI SI| LIEISI 1M 50-SLL 193l0.d 18Y) PApIap sEM 11 ‘UoiSSNOSIP

| 2ziuoug “Funaaw Jv) 8T0Z/8Z/1T 243 Jupnp 03 pasife pue passnasip sem aBueya yae3 19afoud s1y3 Yum sdepaA ET-OFY 3OS I5i| PIPUNUN 343 03 £0-0FH 123losd
“spafosd Aempeo. doj 35043 40) sjuled JO JIUING [10] BU] UD Paseq SEM J3PI0 3L 151 341 jo o} 343 01 panoul sem 133foud Aempeoa doy sapnua Bunywgns yoea 'spuiad snuog Supudisse sayy
sa30.d s Bupng ‘§TOZ ‘BT J9qWSAON U DL AQ PRpURWIWoIaI seM 51| pazRuoud Aempeoy "TTE'SBL'B00'TS 40 1503 [B10) PIIEWNIsa UE Yim s33aloid ABMPEO 6 JO [B10) B PIAIE3S OdLY,

Aanpadeas
OF PUe ¢ '[5°09 SeM Japi0 15y pazpiiond pue ‘Bupjue y2aford ‘1035 [euidio py [estedey) £0-0vH Valolg,

“pafoid

Aupqeay paziuioud 4oy ay) sem GZ0-583 12931014 GZ0-SE) PUE BZ0-SED UIIMII UOHIEUIGWIOI € 5 D0l
SPOT-6Z0A4 30) Bupun; pateunisa sy Buipuny aBuey Juo] pue §Z0Z-610ZA3 10) Fuipuny parewntsa sy Juipuny
aBluel L0ys * Y21e4 U0 paraidde 5e [PROW SANHL Y 01U SINdU AQ PALILIBIZN 1E SIUENSU0) [EISH,

i d
Sanads passduepu] 51
Suog seyray Jagnby 70V
SIHIE [PII0YSIH *SIUS [EA0[03E IV Sa1Iainio) 0
1
333453 Jo AYUNWILIDD 3)115NF (100 L £l
toquils

3 [EjuiauoNAUT
“sasodind UORENJAUSP] 10) MOJIq A3Y 3571 'OdINL 01 PATHLIGNS Sem 1a[01d Ut 10/pue Fujpun)
10) PAAS SEM 1301 18U UM SUOIIPUOY a1 uo paseq 5|

3%

"OJILLY 01 paniiugns
sem 1310id uaym Jo/pue FUIPUN) 10§ partates sem 1af01d TEY) LBYM FIOMIDU 3} U PISEA 51 HIOMII I,

s13al0d 35011 U 3YY 18 U1 Fuliods U) U6 paseq &

| patuioyd pue Bupgues paoid 1035 Pafolg,
:sa30N

SUOQE20] SNoHEA S19001d RV9J¥S] V5909

bt o SRR ECTEIECTDY Solala sSpua]_wa o
e e SUoRE] OMEN Toafoig suriuiTH]  LW-109
SUDLE30] SNOUEA 0foig sanmuanald]  34-109
suipuny uopdudsag awep 123foid _ al OdW1)
(S#DZ-6207) Papuny afuey Buo]

SUonEo0] snonEs s123fo1d Adjes] 5509
666'€08'5915 SUGHE30T SoLIEA s139faig 25pug|  ¥e-+09
n!unuﬁh_hm Jappotade [5) padnoin 5U00E20] SNoLIEA s30lalg adueuaquiey|  LW-E0D.

SUCQE30T SNOLIEA 029014 aaneyuaaald|  3d-109

Aupuny uondudsag awey 123fo14 al OdWL

(8202-6L02) Papuny aduey Lioys

S123rodd d3dnoy¥o

S1203r04dd LISNVHL

/N VIN YN V/N VIN /N VIN VIN V/N
SUOREIapISUO) | SHOMIBN | ejeqia)
Buipuny £ 4 ew uondursaqg palo. sy pafol, awep 1afoy, Jaquun|
¥ | UOIAT dND pajewnsy 150) pajelinsy Lsaq id i pafold N P3lold QUINN (SO | QI OdINLA







